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INTRODUCTION BY THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
 
Performance Review for the Quarter ended December 2020 
 
It gives me great pleasure to present this report of the third quarter 
covering the period 1st October to 31st December 2020. 
 
Core Services (Collective Bargaining Services and Dispute 
Management Services) 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: National 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: National recorded 100% for the 
period under review. This is a significant improvement compared to 
the 50% achieved in the third quarter of the 2019/20 financial period. 
 
Refresher training on QMS was conducted during the third quarter 
for the Core Training Team and the National Training Teams in 
October 2020, in order to bring the training team members up to 
speed on the amendments to the QMS Collective Agreement. 
Council also adopted a staggered approach in the implementation of 
QMS. 

 
Council adopted Collective Agreement No. 3 of 2020: “Amendment 
of Part C of the ELRC constitution: Dispute Resolution Procedures 
(Basic Education and TVET) as Ratified by the Registrar of Labour 
Relation on 29 November 2016,” at the Urgent Special Bargaining 
meeting held on 9th November 2020.   
 
Council also ratified Limpopo Provincial Chamber Collective 
Agreement No. 2 of 2020: “Amendments of Limpopo’s Collective 

Agreement No. 1 of 2008: Guidelines for sifting, shortlisting and 
interview procedure for school and office-based educators”. 
 
The ELRC hosted a Budget and Post Provisioning Workshop on 18th 
and 19th November 2020, to receive presentations from the Employer 
both national and provincial on “Budget and Resourcing” and 
“Allocation of Post Basket”.   
 
There was general concern about the budget cuts that government 
imposed on the public sector, which affected the budgets of Basic 
Education. The Director-General commended the leadership 
provided by the General Secretary and the Chairperson of Council in 
ensuring labour peace between employer and employee parties. 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: Provincial  
 
The performance of the provincial chambers improved considerably 
during the period under review, compared to the performance 
recorded in the third quarter of the 2019/20 financial period.  
 
Six provinces achieved 100%, namely Eastern Cape; Free State; 
Gauteng; KwaZulu-Natal; Limpopo and North West.  
 
It is noteworthy that that three provinces that did not achieve 100%, 
recorded performance above the 70% mark.  
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The Mpumalanga Chamber recorded 82%, which is a significant 
improvement in performance compared to the 66% achieved in the 
third quarter of the 2019/20 financial year.  The Employer did not 
present the report on Employee Health & Wellness and Curriculum 
and Examinations. The two reports are to be tabled in the fourth 
quarter Chamber meeting. 
 
The Northern Cape Chamber recorded 89%, which is decline in 

performance compared to the 100% achieved in the third quarter of 

the 2019/20 financial year. The statistical report on IQMS and PMDS 

assessment was not presented by the Employer. The report will be 

tabled in the fourth quarter of 2020/21. 

 
The Western Cape Chamber recorded 75%, this is consistent with 
the Chamber’s performance in the third quarter of the 2019/20 
financial year.  The implementation of the Nine-Point Safety Strategy 
presented difficulties due to COVID-19 regulations. The Employer 
had to adjust their Management Plan to deal with COVID-19 related 
matters. The target will be addressed in the 2021/22 financial year. 
 
Detailed reports of the nine Chambers are attached.  
 
Dispute Management Services 
 

The ELRC received a total of 157 disputes during the period 
under review. A total of 498 events were conducted for the period 

under review. Of these 498 were event/processes, 135 were 
conciliations and 498 were arbitration events.  A total of 37 arbitration 
awards were rendered. 
 

The ELRC finalised 98 disputes during the period under review.  A 
total of 42 cases were postponed for the period under review and 
22 adjournments took place.  
 
Cases referred to the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year   
 
A total of 427 cases from previous financial years are to be carried 
over to the fourth quarter of the 2020/21financial year.  
 
Cases from previous financial years   
 
Of the 427 cases, 148 are from the 2020/21 financial year; 178 are 
for the 2019/20 financial year, while 100 cases are from previous 
years and remain unresolved.   
 
Practitioners Professional Development 
 
The Council conducted professional training of Dispute Resolution 
Practitioners (Employee Representative) Collective Agreement No. 3 
of 2018 for the Western Cape on 25th November 2020. 
 
Governance and Administration Services 
 
The Legal Sub-Committee was convened as directed by Council to 
work on the amendments to Part C of the ELRC constitution to bring 
it in line with the CCMA rules and to expedite dispute resolution 
processes. The Committee made recommendations to Council on 
the clauses that had been amended.  
 
Risk Management 
 
Management continues to proactively review and manage the risks 
identified under the Key Risk Register. The risks held under the Key 
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Register are those viewed as potential threats to the delivery of the 
overarching objectives for the whole Council. Changes have been 
made to the mitigation actions implemented. 
 
Management has implemented and maintained a comprehensive 
system of internal controls to mitigate the risks and to ensure that the 
Council’s objectives are consistently achieved. Internal controls are 
based on the principle of acceptable risk being inherent to the design 
and implementation of a cost-effective system of internal control. The 
system includes monitoring mechanisms and mitigation processes to 
augment deficiencies when they are detected. 
 
Mobilising Employee Services 
 
Employee wellness 
 
Employee wellness is essential to organisational success. It impacts 
the workplace culture and organisational resources and productivity.  
 
To ensure continuous employee wellness, staff members were 
provided with financial fitness guidelines through a workshop 
conducted by FNB. This was done to assist staff to manage their 
finances in the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Research & Media 
 
As part of the Council’s marketing campaign, the Council increased 
its visibility through regular postings on its social media platforms 
throughout the quarter.  
 
The Council’s advert was place in SADTU’s 30th Anniversary 
Publication. The Council further advertised in NAPTOSA; PEU; 
SADTU and NATU’s 2021 diaries.  

ELRC branded material was donated for the KwaZulu-Natal 
Education Department Programme on 3rd December 2020, where the 
MEC of Education and other education officials acknowledged the 
contributions and support of the Indian community towards 
vulnerable learners and the broader school community of the Beacon 
Ridge Primary School in Chatsworth, Durban.   
 
Information Technology 
 
IT Governance forms an integral part of the Council’s business. 
Achievement of IT Governance objectives is monitored through 
quarterly risk review meetings attended by the Risk Management 
Committee. The monitoring and achievement of IT Governance 
objectives is facilitated through this forum where appropriate IT risks 
and related business objectives are attended to. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The Council recorded an overall performance rate of 91%, which is a 
major improvement in performance compared to the 83% achieved 
in the third quarter of the 2019/20 financial year. 
 

It is anticipated that the performance of provincial chambers will 
continue to improve and that Council’s overall performance will 
continue at the current rate for the remaining quarter of the 2020/21 
financial year.  
 
This report is submitted to the Registrar of Labour in terms of section 
54 of the Labour Relations Act (LRA) 66 of 1995 (as amended). 

 

Ms NO Foca 
General Secretary, ELRC  
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PROGRAMME 1              COLLECTIVE BARGAINING SERVICES: NATIONAL  
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Programme 1 is to contribute to the Council’s vision of a strengthened social contract between government, teacher unions and 
civil society that helps to create a conducive environment for improved quality in teaching and learning.  Such is done by promoting collective 
bargaining at national and provincial levels so as to ensure the development of effective policies for quality public education in a non-disruptive 
environment for teaching and learning. 
 
Sub-programmes: 

 Collective Bargaining (Provincial) 

 Research Services 

 Dispute Prevention Support Services 
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To facilitate bargaining on identified matters of mutual interest in public education.  

 To administer research programmes on identified issues for research on evidence based teacher welfare and national development.  

 To facilitate dispute prevention support services through providing effective administrative functions to shop stewards.  
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Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: National 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd 
Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Collective Bargaining 

Schedule bargaining 

meetings where 

agreed matters of 

mutual interest, as 

identified on the 

management plan, 

would be tabled, 

including the 

conclusion of the Vote 

Weights Collective 

Agreement 

Matters of mutual interest in 

public education are identified 

and tabled at Bargaining 

Meetings, including the 

conclusion of Collective 

Agreement on Vote Weights 

Bargaining meeting 

scheduled to attend 

to matters of mutual 

interest identified for 

the third quarter 

Achieved 
 
Meetings held: 
Urgent Special Bargaining 
meeting on 9th November 
2020 
 

None   

n/a n/a n/a n/a This is an annual 
target that only relates 
to the first quarter of 
the 2020/21 financial 
year. 

To monitor dispute 

prevention task team 

meetings convened at 

provincial level 

Receive reports from 

Provincial Chambers on 

dispute prevention task teams, 

identify areas of concern and 

conduct workshops to address 

matters on a quarterly basis 

n/a 

 

n/a n/a n/a The target was 
removed from the APP 
during the mid-term 
review. 

Training and advocacy 

on the implementation 

of Collective 

Agreements and 

policies 

Conducting training and 

advocacy on the recently 

revised policies and signed 

collective agreements to 

parties to Council 

n/a n/a n/a n/a This is an annual 
target that only relates 
to the first quarter of 
the 2020/21 financial 
year. 

Schedule technical 

and Vocational 

Education and 

Training (TVET) 

bargaining meetings 

where agreed matters 

of mutual interest 

would be tabled 

Agreed matters of mutual 

interest in higher education 

are concluded successfully in 

bargaining meetings 

TVET Bargaining 

meeting scheduled 

to attend to matters 

of mutual interest 

identified for the 

third quarter 

Achieved 
 
Meetings held: 
TVET Bargaining on 10th 
November 2020 
 

None   



 

8 
 

Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
During the period under review Council successfully concluded its meetings virtually.  Council took a decision to conduct refresher training on 
QMS for the Core Training Team (5th October 2020) and the National Training Teams (12th, 13th and 15th October 2020) in order to bring those 
training team members up to speed on the amendments to the QMS Collective Agreement. Council also adopted a staggered approach in the 
implementation of QMS. The decision by Council was that the training of principals be conducted during the current year and the training would 
be for one day.  The implementation of QMS by PL1 educators would take place in 2021 and for all school-based educators in 2022. 
 
The Legal Sub Committee was convened as directed by Council to work on the amendments to Part C of the ELRC constitution to bring it in line 
with the CCMA rules and to expedite dispute resolution processes. The Committee made recommendations to Council on the clauses that had 
been amended.  
 
Council adopted Collective Agreement No. 3 of 2020: “Amendment of Part C of the ELRC constitution: Dispute Resolution Procedures (Basic 
Education and TVET) as Ratified by the Registrar of Labour Relation on 29 November 2016” at the Urgent Special Bargaining meeting held on 
9th November 2020.   
 
Council also ratified Limpopo Provincial Chamber Collective Agreement No. 2 of 2020: “Amendments of Limpopo’s Collective Agreement No. 1 
of 2008: Guidelines for sifting, shortlisting and interview procedure for school and office-based educators”. 
 
The ELRC hosted a Budget and Post Provisioning Workshop on 18th and 19th November 2020, to receive presentations from the Employer both 
national and provincial on “Budget and Resourcing” and “Allocation of Post Basket”.  There was a general concern about the budget cuts that 
government had imposed on the public sector, which affected the budgets of Basic Education. The Director-General commended the leadership 
provided by the General Secretary and the Chairperson of Council in ensuring labour peace between employer and employee parties. 
 
The TVET Bargaining meeting was held on 10th November 2020, in which agenda items were removed that held relevance to the COVID-19 
lockdown but since the alert level was reduced to level 1. The following items were removed: Memo to clarify circular on the return to work 
members who worked for home due to comorbidities; Draft Collective Agreement on the concession for TVET Lecturers; Draft Collective 
Agreement on Appointment of Substitutes and Appointment of TVET Lecturers. 
 
The Audit Committee and the Executive Committee commended the staff of the ELRC under the leadership of the General Secretary and the 
Chairperson of Council, for the improvement in Council’s performance rate.  
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
None. 

 
Linking performance to budget 

 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme Name Actual Expenditure Budget (Over)/Under Expenditure 

 Collective Bargaining Services R’000 R’000 R’000 

National 3,836 5,602 1,766 

CBS: Provincial 698 1,086 388 

Governance Support Services 14 91 77 

Total 4,548 6,779 2,231 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

10 
 

PROGRAMME 1.1   COLLECTIVE BARGAINING SERVICES: PROVINCIAL 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of the provincial chambers is to promote collective bargaining at provincial level to ensure the development of effective 
policies for quality public education in a non-disruptive environment for teaching and learning. 
 

Eastern Cape 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: Eastern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement – 3rd Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A report on the consultation 
process for post provisioning is 
available and presented to 
Chamber  

Reports (4)  
 

 
 
 

 

Distribution of posts and Staff 
Establishments issued to all 
schools.   
Implementation of CA4/2016. 
A Report received and tabled 
at the Chamber meeting of the 
26th November 2020.  

Achieved 
 
A report on Post 
Provisioning was 
received and tabled at 
the Chamber meeting 
of 26th November 2020 
 

None  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Employee Health and Wellness 
(EHW) 
Monitor the introduction and 
implementation of Employee 
Wellness activities and report 
presented to Chamber  

Reports (4) Presentation and analysis of 
reports on the introduced and 
implemented Employee Health 
and Wellness programmes in 
the Chamber meeting. 

Achieved 
 
A report on Employee 
Health and Wellness 
was received and 
tabled at the Chamber 
meeting of 26th 
November 2020 
 

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: Eastern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement – 3rd Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Teacher Development 
Monitoring reports on provision of 
teacher development programmes 
presented in Chamber meeting.  

Reports (4)  
 
 

 

 

 

A report on the implementation 
of Teacher Development 
programmes are received and 
presented to the Chamber 
meeting 

Achieved 
 
A report on Teacher 
Development was 
received and tabled at 
the Chamber meeting 
of 26th November 2020 
 

None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Dispute Prevention 
Monitoring reports on the 
categories and status of the 
Grievances, Misconduct and 
Disputes lodged are available and 
presented to Chamber 

Reports (4) 
 

A report emanating from the 
Dispute Prevention Task 
Team meeting presented to 
the Chamber  

Achieved 
 
A report on Dispute 
Prevention was 
received and tabled at 
the Chamber meeting 
of 26th November 2020 
 

None  
 
 

  

Incentives for Educators 
Monitoring reports on the 
implementation of incentives for 
educators are available and 
presented to Chamber meeting. 

Reports (4)  
 

Report emanating for the 
Incentives Task Team 
presented to the Chamber  

Achieved 
 
A report on Incentives 
for Educators was 
received and tabled at 
the Chamber meeting 
of 26th November 2020 
 

None    

Recruitment and Filling of Posts 
Monitoring reports on the 
recruitment and filling of posts 
presented to Chamber meeting. 

Reports (4)   
 

A report on the Recruitment 
and Filling of posts presented 
in the Chamber  

Achieved 
 
A report on 
Recruitment and 
Filling of Posts was 
received and tabled at 
the Chamber meeting 
of 26th November 2020 
 

None 

 
  

Realignment, Merger and 
Closure of Small Schools 
Monitoring reports on the 
Realignment, Merger and Closure 
of Small Schools and presented to 
the Chamber 

Reports (4)  A report on the Realignment, 
Merger and Closure of Small 
Schools. A report tabled at the 
Chamber meeting  

Achieved  
 
A report on 
Realignment, Merger 
and Closure of Small 
Schools was received 
and tabled at the 

None  
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Collective Bargaining Services: Eastern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement – 3rd Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Chamber meeting of 
26th November 2020 
 

 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year  

 
Task Team meetings were scheduled and convened for the third quarter of 2020/21 as follows: 
 
Dispute Prevention – 2nd November 2020 
 
The Employer presented the quarterly statistics for the period from the third quarter: 
 

 Basic Conditions of Employment Act – 11  

 Collective Agreement – 5  

 Unfair Labour Practice: Benefits – 4  

 Unfair Labour Practice: Promotion – 10  

 Unfair Dismissals – 2  

 Unfair Suspensions – 1  

 Non-payment of Salary – 2  
 
The most common disputes being declared in the last quarter being: 

 

 BCEA = 11 

 ULP Promotion = 10 

 Collective Agreement No.1 of 2012: Interpretation or Application = 5  
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Teacher Development – 20th October 2020: 
 
The Department presented the report on the Curriculum FET Band on programme 210 and indicated that there was no formal training that took 
place during the period due to the Covid-19 pandemic.  

 
The Department also reported that support was provided to FET Subject Advisors and Grade 10 – 12 Teachers during the period on: 
 

 Mediation of Circular E 11 OF 2020 Implementation and Quality Assurance of 2020 School Based Assessment:  Grade 10-12. 

 Mediation of Circular S3 of 2020 on the Distribution of the Teacher Guidelines for the Implementation of Annual Teaching Plans (ATPs) and 
the Minimum Core Content and Skills per Subject and per Grade. 

 Mediation of Circular S7 of 2020 on the Revised Promotion Requirement for Grade 10 & 11 for the 2020 Academic year. 
 

The Department provided a report on the training needs for 2021: 
 
Training Needs Target  Institutes  Training Period  

ICT integration in the 
classroom 

2400 teachers (200 per district) GET and 
FET 

Mandla Makupula Education Leadership Institute 
Port Elizabeth 
Mthatha  
ICT centres in the district 

March, June 2021  

2 Enable training  2400 (200 teachers per district) FET MMELI, PE, Mthatha, ICT centres March, June 2021 

Moodle Learning Management 
System 

2400 (200 teachers per district) GET and 
FET 

MMELI, PE, Mthatha and ICT March, June 2021 

Coding and Robotics Pilot schools (GET schools) number to be 
determined by number of pilot schools  

Port Elizabeth March 2021 

 
The Department presented the report on the Provincial Teacher Development Institutes (PTDI’s). 
 
Incentives – 21st October 2020: 
 
The Department of Education tabled the update report on the implementation of rural incentives. 
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Districts DTT – PPN 
2020 Final 
Posts  

Filled Educators 
19 October 2020  

Incentives 
Captured  

Outstanding 
payments  

Posts to be flagged on 
Persal   

Incorrect Allowance 
Amount 

Exceptions  

Total  7850 7624 7285 339 5 2 29 

 
Recommended Proposals on 7901 Balance Allocations: 
    Column A Column B  

Grand Total  PPN 2020 
Posts / DTT 
Posts 
Allocation  

PPN 2021 
Pre-Final  

% 2020 
DTT 
Allocation  

Proposed 51 Post Balance 
Allocation 
(November/December 2020) 

Proposed 154 Post Balance 
Allocation (with effect from 
01 Jan 2021) 

Number of schools DTT 
select schools not on 2021 
Pre-Final list of schools  

Grand Total  7850 7747 100% 51 154 39 

Allocation  7901 7901     

Balance  51 154     

 
Summary: 

 

 45.3% of Budget spent (R104m of R231m) 

 7285 receiving payment 

 339 outstanding payments 

 29 exception payments (not on DTT select schools). 
 
Staffing for the Recruitment and Filling of posts – 5th November 2020: 
 
The Department of Education reported that in terms of the Annual Reporting Plan there were 154 positions for office-based educators and that 
the Department was in the process of matching and placing. 
 
The Department further tabled the report on: 
Cluster A and B Bulletin Volume 1 – 2 of 2020 as Advertised on 29th January 2020 with the closing date of 24th February 2020. 
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Rationalisation, Realignment, Merger and Closure of Small Schools – 22nd October 2020: 
 
The Chamber meeting of 26th November 2020 postponed the Strategic Planning Session to January 2021. 
 
The Strategic Planning Session is to make an Assessment of the Chamber Performance for the 2020/21 period. 

 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
None. 
 
Linking performance to budget 
 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: 
Eastern Cape 

89 124 35 

Total 89 124 35 
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Free State 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Free State 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd 
Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 3rd 
Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Monitoring of Collective 
Agreement. 
Monitor the   implementation of 
recruitment and filling of posts in 
terms of the FS Collective 
Agreement 1 of 2019 as amended 
and   present report to Chamber.   

Reports (4) Free State   Department of 
Education present to 
Chamber a status report 
on posts advertised and 
filled.  
 

Achieved 
 
The FSDoE presented a report 
on the posts advertised and 
filled in terms of FSCA 1 of 
2019 at the Chamber meeting 
on 13th November 2020 
 

None    

Monitor implementation of 37% 
in lieu of benefits.  
Report on 37% in lieu of benefits 
for educators employed for less 
than six months is presented to 
Chamber. 

Reports (4) Free State Department of   
Education present to 
Chamber a report on 
educators accessing 37% 
in lieu of benefits.  

Achieved 
 
A report on educators accessing 
37% in lieu of benefits was 
presented at the Chamber 
meeting on 13th November 2020 
 

None   

Monitoring Collective 
Agreement 4 of 2018.  
Monitor implementation of ELRC 
CA 4 of 2018 and present report to 
chamber.   

Reports (4) Free State   Department of 
Education present to 
Chamber a report on 
temporary educators 
converted in terms of 
ELRC CA 4 of 2018.  

Achieved 
 
A report on temporary 
educators converted in terms of 
ELRC CA 4 of 2018 was 
presented at the Chamber 
meeting on 13th November 2020 
 

None   

Post Provisioning 
Free State Department of 
Education conduct Consultation on 
post provisioning and present 
report to Chamber.  

Reports (2)  Free State Department of 
Education present to 
Chamber a report on 
issuing of staff 
establishment to schools. 

Achieved 
 
A report on issuing of staff 
establishment to all schools was 
presented at the Chamber on 
13th November 2020 
 
 

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: Free State 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd 
Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 3rd 
Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

Monitoring Collective 
Agreement 4 of 2016 
Monitor implementation of ELRC 
CA 4 of 2016 and present report to 
Chamber 
 

Reports (3) n/a n/a n/a  This is a tri-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first, 
second and fourth 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 

INFORMATION SHARING   

Monitor functionality of 
Curriculum Forum 
Free State Department of 
Education submit report to 
Chamber on the functionality of 
Curriculum Forum 

Reports (4) Free State Department of 
Education present to  
Chamber a report on the 
functionality of the 
Curriculum Forum 
 

Achieved 
 
Curriculum Forum report was 
presented to the Chamber 
meeting on 13th November 2020 
 

None    

Monitor the functionality of 
Equity Targets Forum 
Free State Department of 
Education submit report to 
Chamber on the functionality of 
Equity Forum 
 

Reports (2) n/a 
 

n/a n/a  This is a bi-annual 
target that only 
relates to the 
second and fourth 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 
 

Policy on Incapacity Leave and 
Ill-Health Retirement (PILIR)  
Monitoring the implementation of 
PILIR. 
 
 

Reports (4) Free State Department of 
Education submit to 
Chamber a report on the 
implementation of PILIR 
(Policy on Incapacity 
Leave & Ill - Health 
Retirement) 
 

Achieved  
 
A report on the implementation 
of PILIR was presented to the 
Chamber meeting on 13th 
November 2020 
 

None    

Employee Health and Wellness 
(EHW) 
FSDE submit report to chamber on 
the functionality of Employee and 
Wellness Forum 
    

Reports (3) n/a n/a n/a  This is a tri-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first, 
second and fourth 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 
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Collective Bargaining Services: Free State 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd 
Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 3rd 
Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

Integration of Grade R into 
mainstream of Foundation 
Phase 
Monitor progress in the integration 
of Grade R into Foundation Phase. 
 

Reports (4) Convene ECD Task Team 
meeting to discuss 
progress on integration of 
Grade R into Foundation 
phase. Task team report 
presented to Chamber 

Achieved 
 
ECD Task team meeting was 
convened, and a report 
presented to the Chamber on 
13th  November 2020 
 

None    

Dispute Prevention 
Monitoring reports on the 
categories and status of 
Grievances and Disputes lodged.  

Reports (4)  
Convene task team 
meeting to discuss reports 
on grievances and 
disputes. Task team 
reports presented to 
Chamber. 

Achieved 
 
DPTT meeting was convened 
and a report presented to the 
Chamber meeting on 13th  
November 2020 

None   

 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year  
 
The Chamber’s performance has been consistent in relation to the achievement of quarterly targets and concerning other matters of mutual 
interest that formed part of discussions in the quarter under review. Adequate implementation of the Annual Performance Plan has been because 
of parties’ dedication in ensuring labour peace, prevails in the province. Progress reports emanating from task teams and forum meetings were 
endorsed as follows:  
 
Monitoring of Collective Agreement 
 
The Employer presented report on Vacancy List 1 and 2 of 2019 highlighting progress registered in the implementation of FSCA 1 of 2019 and 
that processes were underway regarding Vacancy List 1 of 2020 for principal posts. 
 
Monitoring implementation of 37% in lieu of benefits 
 
Progress report presented showed that 91 educators received 37% in lieu of benefits in all the five districts in the current quarter. 
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Monitoring Collective Agreement No. 4 of 2018 
 
A report on the implementation of ELRC Collective Agreement No. 4 of 2018 presented the temporary educators that have been converted, 
reasons for those not qualifying to be permanently appointed were also included in the report. Statistics were submitted as indicated below:  

 Of 327 educators, 224 have been converted in Thabo Mofutsanyana 

 Out of 156 educators, 101 have been converted in Fezile Dabi 

 Lejweleputswa: 120 educators have been converted out of 143 

 Motheo: 53 educators have been converted out of 116 

 Xhariep: 27 educators have been converted out of 55 

 A total of 525 temporary educators were appointed permanently, except 272 who did not qualify for conversion  
  

Monitoring implementation of IQMS and PMDS 
 
The Employer presented a progress report in relation to IQMS and PMDS, highlighting activities that took place in the current quarter as follows:
  
a) Administering of self-monitoring instruments, which yielded a very low response because of COVID-19 circumstances 
b) 2020 IQMS summative evaluations, which National directed that a streamlined approach be adopted to conclude the 2020 summative 

evaluations. The streamlined approach focusing on: 

 Self-evaluation, for submission to circuit manager to verify scope and magnitude, evaluation based on first school term as well as activities 
undertaken after reopening of schools 

 Timelines to conduct self-evaluations 

 Validation of summative scores 

 Documents and dates for submission to collection points 
c) Summative evaluation outcomes (streamlined approach) scheduled to be submitted to districts from 2nd to 19th November 2020 
d) Phased-in approach to implementation of QMS that was agreed on by Parties 

 Implementation for Principals from 1st January 2021, and 

 All school-based educators from 1st January 2022. 

 DBE informed departments about the phased-in approach and on 12th October 2020, HEDCOM approved the plan for the training of 
Principals from October to December 2020 

e) Preparations for training of Principals included planning and communication as well as training of Provincial Training Team (PTT) 
f) Training of Principals was scheduled to take place in all the districts from 19th November 2020 to 11th December 2020 
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g) PMDS report focused on timelines in relation to compliance and implementation; progress on payment of pay progression and the levels of 
compliance for submission of 2019/20 performance assessments as well as the 2020/21 work plans 

 
Post Provisioning Consultation 
 
The Employer presented a final staff establishment for 2021, which was issued to all schools in the province and a provincial summary on excess 
educators in the system. 
    
Monitoring functionality of Curriculum Forum 
 
The Employer presented a report on the functionality of Curriculum Forum and recommendations for consideration by the Chamber. The report 
highlighted that discussions in forum meeting focused on:  
 a) tracking learner performance in Grades 1 - 12  
 b) progress registered in term two and three 
 c) support provided in term four, examinations and assessments 
 d) examination readiness and teacher development 
 
Policy and Procedure on Incapacity Leave and Ill-Health Retirement (PILIR) 
 
Progress report on implementation of PILIR highlighted:  

a) Incapacity leave is not unlimited additional sick leave days at an employee’s disposal, it is additional sick leave granted conditionally 
at the Employer’s discretion, as provided for in the Leave Determination and PILIR 

b) Conditionally grant a maximum of 30 consecutive working days temporary incapacity leave with full pay, subject to the outcome of 
investigation into the nature and extend of employee’s incapacity 

c) Names of educators who have been on six months and above long period temporary incapacity leave. 

d) That the implementation of these cases has financial implications on employees of the department and/or union members   
  

Task Team Meetings 
 
The task team meetings were convened during the quarter and discussions focused on progress made as well as challenges encountered, some 
of the activities and challenges emanating from task teams would be deliberated on and resolved during the strategic planning workshop.  
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Dispute Prevention 
 
Dispute Prevention Task Team recommendations were presented for consideration and a report was endorsed by the Chamber.   
 
ADDITIONAL ACHIEVEMENTS  
 
Implementation of Incentives Policy 
 
The progress report presented indicated that 464 incentives were implemented on PERSAL and 180 comprised of terminations and transfers to 
Public Schools because of closure of Farm schools for the hostel project. 
 
Role of QLTC during COVID-19 pandemic   
 
The QLTC report was presented in the Chamber meeting for monitoring and to ensure that COVID-19 non-negotiables are adhered to and Parties 
accepted progress made. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets. 
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Linking performance to budget 
 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: Free 
State  

99 138 39 

Total 99 138 39 
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Gauteng 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Gauteng 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter of 
2020/21 

Actual Achievement 3rd        
Quarter of 2020/21 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 2nd        
Quarter of 2020/21 

Comment on deviations Status 

Information Sharing 

Strategic Planning 
Workshop 
Develop an Annual 
Performance Plan 
(APP) and Budget for 
the next financial year 
(2021/22) and a report 
is received by 
Chamber  
 

Workshop (1) n/a n/a n/a  *This is an annual target 
that only relates to the 
fourth quarter of the 
2020/21 financial year. 
 

Safety in Schools 
Summit & Monitoring 
Strategy  
Convene a Safety 
Strategy & Monitoring 
Workshop and a 
report is received by 
Chamber 
 

Report (1) Convene a safety 
strategy/monitoring 
workshop and report 
is received by 
chamber by the 30th 
September 2020 
 

n/a n/a  *This is an annual target 
that only relates to the 
second quarter of the 
2020/21 financial year. 
 

Dispute Prevention 
Monitor reports from 
the employer on 
categories of 
misconducts, types, 
nature, status of 
grievances and 
disputes lodged; also, 
report is received by 
Chamber  

Reports (4) Convene a meeting to 
receive reports from 
the employer on 
categories of 
misconducts, types, 
nature, status of 
grievances and 
disputes lodged; also, 
a report is received by 
chamber by 31st 
December 2020 

Achieved 
 

The Dispute Prevention Task 
Team meeting was held on 
18th November 2020 to receive 
reports from the Employer on 
categories of misconducts, 
types, nature, status of 
grievances and disputes 
lodged  
 

None     
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Collective Bargaining Services: Gauteng 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter of 
2020/21 

Actual Achievement 3rd        
Quarter of 2020/21 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 2nd        
Quarter of 2020/21 

Comment on deviations Status 

A report was received by 
Chamber on 4th December 
2020 
 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements 

Implementation of 
Collective 
Agreements  
Monitor the 
implementation of 
Collective Agreement 
No. 8 of 2003 on 
Integrated Quality 
Management System 
(IQMS) for School 
Based Educators and 
Collective Agreement 
No. 3 of 2017 on 
Education 
Management Service 
(EMS): Performance 
Management and 
Development System 
(PMDS) For Office 
Based Educators; and 
reports are received 
by Chamber  
 
 

Reports (4) Facilitate and convene 
a meeting to receive a 
progress report from 
the employer on the 
implementation of 
collective agreements 
on performance 
management and a 
report is received by 
chamber by 31st 
December 2020 

Achieved 
 

The IQMS/EMS PMDS Task 
Team meeting was held on 
17th November 2020 to receive 
a report from the Employer on 
the implementation of 
collective agreements on 
performance management 
 
A report was received by 
Chamber on 4th December 
2020 
 
 

None    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Educator 
Resourcing 
Monitor the extent of 
utilisation of temporary 
educators and 
conversion into 
permanent 
appointments based 
on allocated posts 
through Post 
Provisioning Norms 

Reports (4)  Facilitation of 
placement of 
temporary educators 
against New Post 
Establishments 
effective from January 
of the following 
academic year and a 
report is received by 
chamber by 31st 
December 2020. . 

Achieved 
 

The Educator Resourcing Task 
Team meeting was held on 
20th November 2020 to receive 
reports from the Employer on 
the facilitation of placement of 
temporary educators against 
New Post Establishments 
effective from January of the 
following academic year 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Gauteng 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter of 
2020/21 

Actual Achievement 3rd        
Quarter of 2020/21 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 2nd        
Quarter of 2020/21 

Comment on deviations Status 

(PPN) and reports are 
received by Chamber.  
 

A report was received by 
Chamber on 4th December 
2020 
 
 

Employee Health & 
Wellness  
Monitor the 
introduction and 
implementation of 
Employee Health & 
Wellness Programs 
and a report is 
received by Chamber  
 

Reports (4) Facilitate and convene 
a meeting in line with 
the ELRC constitution 
for tabling by the 
employer of 
implementation report 
on the Employee 
Wellness Health & 
Wellness Program 
against set targets 
and report is received 
by chamber by 31st 
December 2020. 

Achieved 
 
The Employee Health & 
Wellness Task Team meeting 
was held on 10th November 
2020 to receive a report from 
the Employer on the 
implementation report on the 
Employee Wellness Health & 
Wellness Program against set 
targets 
 
A report was received by 
Chamber on 4th December 
2020 
 

None    

 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
The Gauteng Provincial Chamber’s performance during the reporting period improved considerable compared to that of the second quarter of 
the 2020/21 financial period. Despite the challenges brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic and virtual meetings, parties focused their efforts 
and attention on the implementation of the Annual Performance Plan (APP) objectives for 2020/21.  
 
Progress of the activities of the Gauteng Chamber during the reporting period is recorded below: 
 
Dispute prevention  
 
The Dispute Prevention Task Team met on 18th November 2020. The purpose of the meeting was to receive a report from the Employer on 
categories of misconduct such as type, nature, status of grievances and disputes lodged. The task team dealt with the review of Collective 
Agreement No. 2 of 2005, intermediary services and the comprehensive dispute management report.  
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The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendations: 
 

 The position of the Employer was that there was no consensus on two contentious issues as the Employer rejected organised labour’s 

proposals on the Review of Collective Agreement No. 2 of 2005 

 Organised labour needed a formal response on the position of the Employer regarding the two contentious on Review of Collective 

Agreement 2 of 2005 

 The Employer to make a follow up on the issue of a formal response via Provincial Education Labour Relations Council (PELRC) on the 

Employer’s position 

 The Employer is to send possible training dates for Parties to observe how intermediary service facilities would be operated 

 The Employer is to follow up on the workshop on alternatives to corporal punishment  

 The report on comprehensive dispute management was accepted by the task team 

Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS)/ Education Management Service (EMS): Performance Management and Development 
System (PMDS)  
 
The IQMS/EMS PMDS task team met on 17th November 2020. The purpose of the meeting was to receive a progress report from the Employer 
on the implementation of collective agreements on performance management.  The meeting dealt with IQMS/EMS PMDS pay progression and 
Quality Management System. 
 
The meeting agreed on the following proposed recommendations for consideration by Chamber: 
 

 The task team accepted the report. 

 The report is to be tabled for ratification by Chamber 

 Organised labour was urged to submit queries on IQMS payments for therapists to the Employer 

Educator resourcing  
 
During the reporting period, one consultative meeting was held on 20th November 2020. The purpose of the meeting was to receive reports on 
facilitation of placement of temporary educators against new post establishments effective from January of the following academic year and a 
report is received by Chamber by 31st December 2020.   
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The meeting dealt with the progress report on advertised posts for office-based educators; update on vacancy circulars school-based educators; 
an update on conversions of temporary educators and appointment of Post Level 1 (PL1) educators.  
 
The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendations:  
 

 The Employer is to avail to Parties, before the Chamber meeting, an update on delays on filling of posts for office-based educators in 2019 

 The Employer is to table an updated report on withdrawn posts and reasons thereof 

 The Employer is to provide weekly updates on withdrawn posts and reasons thereof 

 A mechanism is to be developed to protect temporary educators against all forms of abuse and exploitation 

 The Employer is to initiate a draft circular by the first quarter of the 2021/22 financial year, to deal with the appointment of temporary 

educators on substantive posts 

Employee Health & Wellness (EH&W) 
 
The Employee Health & Wellness Task Team met on 10th November 2020.  The purpose of the meeting was to receive an implementation report 
on the employee health and wellness program against set targets.  
 
The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendations: 
 

 The report was accepted by the EH & W task team 

 The report is to be tabled in the Chamber meeting for ratification 

 
Additional Chamber objectives:  
 
Monitoring & Evaluation (M&E) 
 
The Special Monitoring & Evaluation Technical Task Team met on 22nd October 2020. The meeting dealt with a revised M&E Management Plan 
and draft classroom observation tool. The technical task team is a sub-committee of the Educator Development Task Team. It agreed on the 
following proposed recommendations for consideration by the Educator Development Task Team: 
 

 The Revised M&E Management Plan was accepted with amendments 

 The Revised M&E Management Plan is to be tabled for acceptance by the Educator Development Task Team 
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 The Draft M&E Classroom Observation Tool was accepted with amendments 

 The Revised Draft M&E Classroom Observation Tool and Revised Management Plan is to be tabled for acceptance by the Educator 

Development Task Team 

Educator development  
 
The Educator Development Task Team met on 13th and 25th November 2020. The purpose of the meetings was to receive reports from the 
Employer on teacher development programs. The meetings dealt with bursary allocations; draft protocol and guidelines for training sessions; 
data management system; monitoring and evaluation technical task team report; draft teacher development training schedule for the 2021/22 
financial year and the draft teacher development training schedule for the fourth quarter of the 2021/22 financial period.  
 
Grade R (Universalisation)  
 
The Grade R (Universalisation) Task Team meeting was held on 9th October and 23rd November 2020. The task team dealt with Draft Guidelines 
on the Implementation of Grade R for School Governing Bodies and School Management Teams and the Draft Grade R Practitioners’ Training 
Schedule for year 2021/22. 
 
The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendations: 
 

 The Employer is to revise the Draft Guidelines on the Implementation of Grade R 

 The Employer is to investigate the issue of substitutes during leave of educators outside holidays 

 The Employer is to include training principles in the Grade R Practitioners’ Training Schedule for 2021/22 

Learners with Special Education Needs (LSEN)  

The LSEN Task Team meeting was held on 16th November 2020. The meeting dealt with the update on alignment of domains of support, National 
Circular 04 0f 2020; management plan; educational tours in special schools; Quality Assurance on Technical Occupational Curriculum (TOC) 
and resources. 
 
The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendation: 
 

 Organised labour is to be given an extended opportunity to submit early in 2021 specifics on Quality Assurance on Technical Occupational 

Curriculum (TOC) and resources.  
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Procedure on Incapacity Leave and ill-Health Retirement (PILIR) 
 
The PILIR Task Team meeting was held on 10th November 2020. The purpose of the meeting was to receive an implementation report on the 
PILIR program against set targets. The meeting dealt with the review of time frames on PILIR processes; combination of PILIR and Employee 
Health & Wellness task teams; PILIR leaves and quarterly PILIR report. 
 
The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendations: 
 

 The Employer is to table in the next task team or Chamber meeting a progress report on the outcome of engagements with the DPSA on 

the review of timeframes on the PILIR process. 

 The Employer is to table, on or before the Chamber meeting, a progress report on the submission regarding the combination of PILIR and 

EH & W task teams. 

 SADTU is to provide specifics to the Employer on unpaid educators who were on maternity leave.   

 
Safety in schools 
 
The Safety in Schools Task Team met on 24th November 2020. The meeting dealt with schools’ safety strategy and schools’ monitoring strategy. 
 
The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendations: 
 

 The Employer is to present an implementation report in the next task team meeting.  

 The Employer invited inputs from organised labour on the safety strategy document. 

 The Employer is to respond in an appropriate time on resources for patrollers. 

 The Employer is to table a presentation on the school safety monitoring strategy in the next task team 

 
Magnet schools 
 
The Magnet Schools Task Team meeting was held on 17th November 2020. The meeting dealt with the framework on implementation; relocation 
of magnet schools; revised curriculum implementation 2021 and performing arts in magnet schools. 

 
 



 

30 
 

Grade 12 Markers 
 
The Grade 12 Markers Task Team meeting was held on 6th October 2020. The meeting dealt with feedback on e-Marking and re-Marking; 
Appointment of Markers National Senior Certificate (NSC) Final Examinations 2020 November/December. 
 
The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendations: 
 

 The Employer is to invite organised labour to observe the e-Marking and re-Marking processes.   

 Organised labour is to submit a list of observers in the NSC Final Exams 2020 November/December marking by 30th October 2020. 

 The Employer is to avail a copy of Memorandum 5/2020. 

 The Employer is to avail a copy of Examination Instruction 5/2020. 

 The Employer to invite leading officials from its relevant unit to share information on the NSC Final Examinations November/December 

2020.  

 The Secretary is to convene a special task team meeting for Parties to receive shared information on the NSC Final Exams in 

November/December 2020. 

Curriculum  
 
The Curriculum Task Team meeting was held on 4th November 2020. The meeting dealt with the Memorandum (Memo) on the Implementation 
of Reading Assessment 2020. 
 
The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendations: 
 

 The Employer is to revise the Memo on the Implementation of a Reading Assessment for 2021. 

 The Employer is to circulate to Parties the draft revised Memo on the Implementation of Reading Assessment for 2021. 

 A task team meeting is to be convened to engage on the contents of the draft revised Memo on the Implementation of a Reading 
Assessment for 2021.  

 
Quality Management System (QMS) 
 
The Special QMS Task Team meeting was held on 16th October 2020. The task team dealt with QMS Training; Gauteng Department of Education 
(GDE) training strategy; composition of training teams; training plan; management plan; training schedule and provincial training team.  
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The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendations: 
 

 QMS trainings for school principals could be held also on Saturdays 

 Union observers in training sessions to be at ratio of 2:1 (SADTU 2 and CTU-ATU 1) 

 The Employer is to revise the management plan for QMS trainings for school principals 

 
Quality Learning and Teaching Campaign (QLTC) 
 
The QLTC Task Team meeting was held on 3rd December 2020. The purpose of the meeting was to resuscitate the QLTC Project in the Gauteng 
Province as per the Council decision taken on 5th August 2020. The task team dealt with the resuscitation of the QLTC in Gauteng. 
 
The task team agreed on the following proposed recommendations: 
 

 The report is to be tabled in Chamber for noting as work in progress 

 The Employer is to resuscitate the QLTC Project by January 2021 

 The Employer is to table a report in the next task team meeting on the QLTC implementation process  

 The MEC’s Office, School Governance Directorate and Communications Unit is to meet on the issue of resuscitating the QLTC Project 

Strategic Planning Workshop 
 
The strategic planning workshop was held from 26th to 27th November 2020. The workshop dealt with the assessment of the performance of the 
provincial Chamber for the 2019/20 and 2020/21 financial years; proposed APP and budget for 2021/22. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned target  
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
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Linking performance to budget  
 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: 
Gauteng 

105 141 36 

Total 105 141 36 
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KwaZulu-Natal 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: KwaZulu-Natal 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd 
Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 3rd 
Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
Facilitate the consultation process 
for Post Provisioning and reports 
presented to Chamber 
 
 
 

Workshop (1) 
 
Reports (2) 
 
 
 

n/a n/a n/a  This is a bi-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first 
and seconds 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 
 

Incentives for Educators 
Monitoring reports on the 
implementation of incentives for 
educators are available and 
presented to Chamber 

Workshop (1) 
 
Reports (3)  
 
 
 
 

Progress Report from 
employer received and 
analysed at the task team 
and presented to Chamber 
with regard to : 
 
(i) Payment to recipients. 
 
(ii) Schools which have 
appealed the process. 

Achieved 
 
A report from the task team on 
(i) the payment to recipients and 
(ii) schools which have 
appealed the process, was 
presented and adopted at the 
Chamber meeting held on 14th  
December 2020 

None   

Employee Health and Wellness  
Monitoring reports on the 
implementation of Employee 
Health and Wellness Programmes 
are available and presented to 
Chamber 

Reports (4) 
 
 
 

Report from  the task team 
received by Chamber on 
the implementation of 
Employee Health and 
Wellness Programmes 

Achieved 
 
A report from the task team on 
the Implementation of Employee 
Health and Wellness 
Programmes was presented 
and adopted at the Chamber 
meeting held on 14th December 
2020  
 

None   

Teacher Development  
Monitoring reports on 
implementation of new and/or 
existing Teacher Development 

Reports (4) 
 
 

Progress report from  the 
task team received by 
Chamber on the  

Achieved 
 
A progress report on the 
Implementation of Teacher 

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: KwaZulu-Natal 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd 
Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 3rd 
Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

programmes and reports 
presented to Chamber.  
 

Implementation of Teacher 
Development programmes 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Programmes was 
presented and adopted at the 
Chamber meeting held on              
14th  December 2020  

Dispute Prevention  
Monitor and analyse statistical 
reports presented to Chamber on 
the categories and status of 
Grievances, Misconduct and 
disputes lodged, as well as from 
time to time, adopting new dispute 
prevention strategies 

Reports (4) 
 

Report from the task team 
received by Chamber on:  
 
(i) The monitoring and 
analysis of Grievances, 
Misconduct and Disputes 
statistical information.  
 
(ii) Recommendation/s 
made by the task team 
(whenever applicable) on 
new dispute prevention 
strategies 
 

Achieved  
 
A report from the Dispute 
Prevention task team was 
presented and adopted at the 
Chamber meeting held on 14th  
December 2020  

 

None    

 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
It is once more pleasing to present this report on behalf of the KZN PELRC for the period under review, as Chamber continue to operate amidst 
the prevailing limitations occasioned by the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Despite all the limitations, Parties strive to ensure that Chamber remains optimally functional and have steadily adapted to the ‘new normal’ way 
of operating. Whilst all remain cautiously optimistic that pandemic may be brought under control with the development of a vaccine, it is reassuring 
that should things take an unfortunate turn for the worse (as has happened elsewhere in the world due to the emergence of a ‘second wave’ of 
infections) that the work of the Chamber shall continue unabated.   
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Over and above convening all task teams and the subsequent Chamber meeting to receive and adopt reports on all pre-determined objectives, 
perusal of the efforts enlisted under the “additional items’ bear testament to the ability of Parties to meet under the auspices of Chamber and 
make a contribution to some contemporary matters introduced during this quarter. One case in point was the Parties meeting and discussion on 
the best way to practically implement the State President’s Education Employment Initiative Programme.  
 
Additional activities dealt with in KZN PELRC during the 3rd Quarter:    
 

   Education Employment Initiative (formulation of a task team to deal with specific administrative and other related challenges that are likely 
to emerge during the roll-out phase (e.g. disputes / grievances / training of the Educator Assistants during the December / January vacation 
period when schools are closed) 

 

   Appointment of Therapists as part of initiative of the Employee health and wellness programme 
 

   Sourcing and analysing statistics on why educators behave violently – as part of an added initiative of the Employee     
Health and Wellness Task team  

 

   Preparation for the convening of a joint HR Workshop to identify systemic challenges that impede service delivery and to identify ways 
and means to improve efficiency and turn-around times in service delivery with the Department of Education. The workshop shall be held 
in January 2021 

 

   Received and analysed progress reports on the filling of promotion posts  
 

   Convening of the Grade R task team meetings to receive a report on the latest developments with regard to the Early Childhood 
Development (ECD) / Grade R Function Shift from the Department of Social Development to the Department of Basic Education 
 

   Research on qualification in Education law for Chamber delegates to be enrolled for in 2020 
 

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  
 
Not applicable. 
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Changes to planned target  

 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 
 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: 
KwaZulu-Natal 

68 166 98 

Total 68 166 98 
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Limpopo 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: Limpopo 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd Quarter Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 3rd Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Human Resources 
Management (HRM) 
Monitoring HR reports on the 
provisioning of Human 
Resources and reports 
presented in Chamber 
meetings 

Reports (4) Report on the issuing of 
finalized post 
establishments and 
staffing of schools is 
tabled in the Chamber 
meeting 

Achieved  
 
The report on the issuing of 
finalised post establishments and 
the management for the 
implementation of same was 
tabled and adopted in the special 
Chamber meeting held on 24th 
November 2020 
 
 

None   

Rationalisation of schools    
Monitoring in Chamber, the 
LDoE’s HRM reports in the 
chamber meeting on the 
rationalisation of schools 
 

Reports (3) n/a n/a   This is a tri-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first, 
second and fourth 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 
 

PILIR (Policy on Incapacity 
Leave and Ill-health 
Retirement)  
Monitoring in Chamber, the 
LDoE’s HRM reports on the 
processing of PILIR referrals 
 

Reports (3) n/a n/a   This is a tri-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first, 
second and fourth 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 

Incentivised posts 
Reports on the payment of 
incentives for educators are 
available and presented to 
Chamber  

Reports (4) A report on the payment 
of incentives to 
educators in qualifying 
posts is tabled by the 
Employer party and 

Achieved  
 
The report on the payment of 
incentives to educators in 
qualifying posts was tabled and 
discussed in the Human Resource 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Limpopo 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd Quarter Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 3rd Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

discussed in the 
chamber meeting 

Management subcommittee 
meeting held on 9th November 
2020 and then adopted in the 
Chamber meeting held on 23rd 
November  2020 
 

Employee Safety, Health 
and Wellness 
Monitoring the 
implementation of Employee 
wellness programmes and 
reports presented in Chamber 

Reports (3) n/a n/a   This is a tri-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first, 
second and fourth 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 
 

Dispute Prevention  
Monitor reports on the 
categories and status of 
grievances and disputes 
lodged and reports are 
presented in Chamber 
quarterly 

Reports (4) Receive, discuss and 
analyse report on the 
trends of grievance and 
disputes in the Chamber 
meeting 

Achieved 
 
The report on the trends of 
grievance and disputes was 
received and discussed in the 
Dispute Prevention subcommittee 
meeting held on 22nd October 
2020 and later adopted in the 
Chamber meeting held on 23rd 
November 2020 
 

   

Educators Performance 
management  
Monitor the implementation of 
performance management 
instruments and present 
reports in the Chamber 
meeting 
 

Reports (3) n/a n/a   This is a tri-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first, 
second and fourth 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 
 

Curriculum and 
examinations  
Monitor the implementation of 
curriculum policies and the 
management of examinations 
and reports are presented to 
Chamber 

Reports (3) n/a n/a   This is a tri-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first, 
second and fourth 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 
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Collective Bargaining Services: Limpopo 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd Quarter Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 3rd Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

 

Capacity building 
programme 
Monitor capacity building 
programmes for negotiators 
as well as circuits and 
districts sub-committee 
members 
 

Reports (2) n/a n/a   This is a bi-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first 
and second 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 

 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
Chamber achieved all set targets for the third quarter. Additional objectives were achieved in four special meetings. All these well attended 
meetings were held online via the Zoom platform. This advent of online meetings has brought about a consistent reduction of the rate of 
postponement of meetings. Parties to Chamber also implemented the management plan for the training of educators on the QMS, where the 
circuit managers were trained as members of the Provincial training teams who in turn trained the primary school principals. Secondary school 
principals will be trained in 2021 as they were busy with invigilation of end of year examinations. 
 
Chamber discussed and adopted reports on the following items:  
 
The management plan for the implementation of the 2021 schools’ post establishments 
 
Parties adopted the management plan for the implementation of the 2021 schools’ post establishments. Parties also agreed that the Employer 
will issue out a circular to schools, districts and circuits on the implementation of this management plan. In terms of the management plan, the 
final schools post establishments for 2021 was issued out on 2nd October 2020. 
 
The payment of incentives (Rural allowance) for qualifying educators  
 
The Employer reported that 79 cases on incentives (Rural allowance) for qualifying educators were finalised from the combined total of 81 
applications received from Capricorn North, Sekhukhune East and Sekhukhune South districts. 
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Dispute Prevention 
 

 Total number of grievances handled was 14 

 Total number of grievances finalised was three  

 No grievances were finalised within 30 days 

 Total number of grievances finalised outside 30 days was three 

 Total number of grievances pending was 11 

 Total number grievances pending outside 30 days was 11 
 

 Total number of disputes reported was 35 

 Total number of arbitrations finalised was eight 

 Total number arbitrations pending was 27 
 

Rationalisation and merging of schools 
 
An additional 20 schools were merged this quarter to take the tally of merged schools to 356. Five merged schools were moved to new 
receiving sites to take the tally to 167. One school was closed in Capricorn South to take the tally of closed schools to 39.  
 
Provision of scholar transport 
Nine schools in five circuits were provided with transport 

 
Additional achievements: 
 
Amendment of Collective Agreement No.1 of 2008  
 
Parties signed Collective Agreement No.1 of 2008, which was ratified by Council to become Collective Agreement No. 2 of 2020 on sifting 
shortlisting and interviews for school and office-based educators. 

 

Progress on the appointment of educators produced by Funza Lushaka  
 

A total of 505 Funza Lushaka bursary beneficiaries were allocated to Limpopo, of these 349 (i.e. 89%) of them were placed at schools. The 
remaining 113 could not be placed for various qualification related reasons, 43 were outstanding. 



 

41 
 

QMS training 
 
The training of the QMS provincial task team comprising of circuit managers had already started. Training for primary school principals was to 
follow. The training for secondary school principals would be done in 2021 as they were busy with invigilation of the external examinations and 
its attendant marking. 
 
Strategic planning meeting 
 
Parties held the strategic planning meeting online on 25th November 2020, wherein they dealt with the SWOT analysis of the Chamber and 
developed the 2021-2022 annual performance plan of Chamber. 
 

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  

 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned target  
 
No changes to planned targets.   
 
Linking performance to budget 
 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: 
Limpopo 

143 265 122 

Total 143 265 122 
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Mpumalanga 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Mpumalanga 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd        
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post-Provisioning 

A report on the 

consultation process 

for post-provisioning is 

available and tabled in 

Chamber 

 

Reports (4) 

 

Workshop (1) 

 

A consolidated report on 

the distribution of posts 

provisioning for 2021 

received and analysed by 

Chamber 

Achieved 

 

The Chamber meeting of 8th 

December 2020 received and 

analysed a consolidated report 

on the distribution of posts 

 

None   

Employee Health and 

Wellness 

Monitor the 

introduction and 

implementation of 

Employee Health and 

Wellness activities and 

present reports to 

Chamber 

Reports (4) Presentation on 

introduced and 

implemented Employee 

Health and Wellness 

programs in Chamber 

meeting 

Not Achieved  Report (1) 

 
 

The report was not received 

from the Employer. 

 

Teacher 

Development 

Monitoring reports on 

provisioning of 

Teacher Development 

Programs and reports 

presented to Chamber 

 

Reports (2) n/a n/a n/a  *This is a bi-annual target 
that only relates to the first 
and fourth quarters of the 
2020/21 financial year. 
 

Incentives for 

Educators 

 Monitoring reports on 

the implementation of 

incentives for 

educators are 

Reports (4) 

 

Workshop (1) 

Report on schools that 

have appealed the 

process presented in 

Chamber  

Achieved 

 

The Chamber meeting of 8th 

December 2020 received a 

report on schools that have 

appealed the process 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Mpumalanga 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd        
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

available and 

presented to 

Chamber. 

 

Dispute Prevention 

Monitoring the 

implementation of a 

strategy to minimize 

the level grievances, 

misconduct and 

disputes lodged 

presented in Chamber 

 

Reports (4) Convene a task team 

meeting and report on 

Dispute prevention 

presented in Chamber 

Achieved 

 

The Chamber meetings of 8th 

October and 8th December 

2020 received a report on 

meetings of the Dispute 

Prevention Task Team 

None   

Collective 

Agreements 

To monitor the 

implementation of 

collective agreements 

and reports presented 

in Chamber 

Reports (4) Progress Reports on the 

implementation of 

Collective Agreements 

presented by the 

Employer received and 

analysed in Chamber  

Achieved 

 

The Chamber meetings of 8th 

October and 8th December 

2020 received reports on the 

implementation of collective 

agreements 

 

None   

Inclusive 

Education/LSEN 

To monitor the 

implementation of 

Inclusive Education 

Policy and reports 

presented to Chamber 

 

Reports (4) Reports on Inclusive 

Education received by 

Chamber 

 

 

Achieved 

 

The Chamber meetings of 8th 

October and 8th December 

2020 received reports on 

Inclusive Education 

None   

Early Childhood 

Development (ECD) 

To monitor progress in 

the provisioning of 

Practitioners in ECD 

and progress on the 

training conducted on 

ECD in the Province, 

Reports (4) Progress Report on the 

provisioning of training of 

practitioners’ (ECD band) 

received and analysed in 

Chamber 

Achieved 

 

The Chamber meeting of 8th 

October 2020 received a 

report on ECD from the 

Employer 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Mpumalanga 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd        
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

reports presented to 

Chamber 

 

Employment Equity 

To monitor the 

implementation of the 

employment equity 

plan  

Reports (4) Progress reports on 

equity targets received 

and analyzed in 

Chamber 

 

Achieved 

 

The Chamber meeting of 8th 

October and 8th December 

2020 received reports on 

Employment Equity  

 

None   

Curriculum and 
Examinations 
Monitoring reports on 

the implementation of 

curriculum policy and 

management of 

examinations, reports 

presented to Chamber 

 

Reports (4) Reports on the 
implementation of 
curriculum policies and 
exams received and 
analysed in Chamber 
 

Not Achieved  Report (1) 

 
 

The report was not received 

from the Employer in the 

Chamber meeting of 8th 

December 2020. 

 

Maths, Science and  
Technology 
Academy 
To monitor the 
implementation of 
MSTA programs and 
reports presented to 
Chamber 
 

Reports (4) Reports on the 

implementation of MSTA 

programs received and 

analysed in Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meetings of 8th 
October and 8th December 
2020 received reports from the 
Employer on MSTA programs 

None   

Policy and 
Procedure on 
Incapacity and Ill 
Health  
Retirement (PILIR) 
To monitor the 

implementation of the 

Policy on PILIR and 

present reports to 

Chamber 

Reports (4) Progress reports on the 

finalization of PILIR 

cases/applications 

received and analysed in 

Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 8th 
December 2020 received a  
report on PILIR from the 
Employer 

None   
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Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
The Limpopo Chamber managed to facilitate two Chamber meetings and one Special Chamber; two STANCO meetings and three meetings of 
task teams that received and analysed a consolidated report on the distribution of posts provisioning for 2021.  
 
The Chamber was updated on the good and progressive implementation of Collective Agreement No. 4 of 2018, which reflected that contracts 
of Temporary Educators have been extended to 31st March 2021 and the Management Plan is to translate them (temporary educators) to 
permanent. The Employer reported that there were no schools which appealed the process for Teacher Incentives and that all 312 qualifying 
beneficiaries in the four districts have been incentivised by end of November 2019. 
 
The Parties discussed and ratified all decisions of the Standing Committee and recommendations of the task teams and further agreed that they 
be implemented. 
 
The progress report on the roll-out training program for the Quality Management System recorded that 152 Provincial Training Team members 
and 1423 principals were trained during the 2020 academic year. In addition, reported that the training of Deputy-Principals and Head of 
Departments is expected to start in the 2021 academic year and that implementation of the system will commence in the same year as the training 
of the second cohort. 
 

The information on Inclusive Education reflected that all planned priorities for the third quarter were successfully realised, a research was 
conducted for the Early Grade Reading Study program and the Chamber is awaiting a report on the outcome thereof. The implementation of the 
program on the Incremental Introduction of African Languages continue to record good progress.  
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 

 

The Reports on Employee Health & Wellness and Curriculum and Examinations are to be presented in the fourth quarter Chamber meeting.  
 

Changes to planned target  
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
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Linking performance to budget 
 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: 
Mpumalanga 

39 82 43 

Total 39 82 43 
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North West  
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: North West 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd        
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A consolidated report 
on the consultation 
process and 
distribution of post 
provisioning for the 
following financial year 
received by Chamber 
 
 

Reports (3) 
 
    
 

n/a n/a n/a  *This is a tri-annual target 
that only relates to the 
first, second and fourth 
quarters of the 2020/21 
financial year. 
 

Employee Health and 
Wellness 
The report on the 
nature and number of 
Employee Wellness 
activities introduced 
and implemented 
presented in Chamber 

Reports (2) A report on programmes 
that the Employer has 
implemented presented 
in Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 13th 
November 2020 received a 
report on Employee Health 
and Wellness 

None   

Teacher 
Development 
Monitoring progress 
reports on provisioning 
of teacher 
development 
programs are 
presented in Chamber 
 

Reports (4) Teacher Development 
programmes report 
presented and received 
by Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 13th 
November 2020 received a 
report in relation to 
programmes on Teacher 
Development 

None   

Dispute Prevention  
Monitoring reports on 
the categories and 
status of disputes and 

Reports (4) Statistical report (national 
and provincial) discussed 
at quarterly meetings of 
Task Team and 
presented to Chamber 

Achieved  
          
The Chamber meeting of 13th 
November 2020 accepted 
reports on disputes; 

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: North West 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd        
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

grievances lodged 
presented in Chamber 

misconducts and grievances 
discussed at the Task Team 
meeting of 23rd October 2020 
 

 

Terminations 
(contract expiry; 
resignations; 
retirements; 
deceased and 
dismissals) 
Consolidated reports 
on the category of 
terminations is 
available and 
presented in Chamber 
 

Reports (3) n/a n/a n/a  *This is a tri-annual target 
that only relates to the 
first, second and fourth 
quarters of the 2020/21 
financial year. 
 

QLTC 
The report on 
progress made in 
relation to QLTC 
activities presented in 
Chamber 
 

Reports (3) Progress report on QLTC 
activities received and 
analysed by Chamber. 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 13th 
November 2020 received 
reports on QLTC activities 

None   

Safety in Schools 
Implementation of 
programmes on safety 
in schools are 
presented in Chamber 

Reports (3) A report on programmes 
of Safety in Schools 
received by Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 13th 
November 2020 received 
reports on Safety in Schools 
 

None   

Advertisement and 
Filling of Posts 
Sharing information on 
the advertisement and 
filling of posts at the 
Chamber 
 

Reports (2) Statistical report on 
advertisement and filling 
of posts presented and 
received by Chamber  

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 13th 
November 2020 received 
reports on Advertisement and 
Filling of Posts 

None   

IQMS/PMDS 
Consolidated report on 
assessed and paid 

Reports (2) n/a n/a n/a  *This is a tri-annual target 
that only relates to the 
first, second and fourth 
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Collective Bargaining Services: North West 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd        
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

employees is available 
and presented in 
Chamber 
 

quarters of the 2020/21 
financial year. 
 

Temporary 
Educators 
Monitoring reports on 
the implementation of 
Collective Agreement 
on Temporary 
Educators are 
available and 
presented in Chamber 
 

Reports (4) Statistical report on 
temporary educators 
received by Chamber 

Achieved 

The Chamber meeting of 13th 
November 2020 received 
report on temporary teachers 

None   

Incentives for 
Educators 
Monitoring reports on 
the implementation of 
incentives for 
educators are 
available and 
presented in Chamber 
 

Reports (2) 
 

Reports on payments 
and appeals by schools 
received by Chamber 

Achieved  

The Chamber meeting of 13th 
November 2020 received a 
report on payments related to 
Incentives for Educators 

None   

 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
During the third quarter of 2020/21 the North West Chamber managed to host a number of activities seeking to guarantee the realisation of the 
objectives of the provincial chambers as prescribed by the ELRC constitution, and the following bear reference: 
 
On 23rd October 2020 the two Task Teams were convened with the view of receiving and analysing reports on appointment and conversion of 
temporary teachers (Task Team on Collective Agreement No. 4 of 2018), as well as reports on grievance-lodging; misconduct-cases and disputes 
(Task Team on Dispute Prevention) to be processed for the attention of the formal Chamber meeting. The Task Team on Dispute Prevention 
regrettably noted allegations in relation to unprocedural cases confined to employees doing business with the Employer, which would be subjected 
to formal disciplinary processes instead of progressive disciplinary exercises as prescribed by item 5 of Schedule 2 of the Employment of 
Educators’ Act 76 of 1998 (EEA 76/1998). Having conceded that there is information deficiency in terms of legal interpretation related to 
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implementation of item 5 of Schedule 2 of EEA 76/1998, the Task Team implored for dispute resolution measures such as grievance procedures 
together with capacity-building programmes progressively meant to respond to such potential risk. 
 
The formal Chamber meeting convened on 13th November 2020 was mandated to process reports from the Employer as illustrated by the table 
above. Reports emanating from task teams defined by the latter paragraph including drafts related to the APP and the budget prepared for the 
2021/22 financial year derived from the business of the Strategic Planning Workshop (SPW) held on 30th October 2020.  
 
Amongst eight reports received from the Employer party, reports related to Safety in Schools including Advertisement and filling of Posts were 
scrutinised and the meeting unanimously reflected as follows: 
 
Sequel to findings on unclear challenges and mitigation measures as well as questionable reporting by learning institutions as recorded by the 
report on Safety in Schools, which is perceived as lacking systematic order, the meeting agreed that: 

 the report is to be more explicit in terms of defining problems and intervention strategies  

 schools are to be urged to report cases for the purpose of holistic reporting 

 a template identifying aspects and/or information as items congruent to programmes on safety issues be developed 
 
The chronological arrangement of the management-plan formulated to guide implementation of programmes on Advertisement and Filling of 
Posts was viewed as not practical in that some of the activities were overtaken by events and mandates of the said management-plan also 
include the holiday period. The meeting further acknowledged that a report guided by circular 29 of 2020 seeking to process advertised posts for 
office-based educators, is not yet presented at the Chamber, thus it was concurred that: 

 there is a need for the management-plan to be reviewed due to prescribed dates which are unrealistic and inconsistent 

 the next report to reflect a progress report on circular 29 of 2020  
 
The formal Chamber meeting of 13th November 2020 also adjudicated on the report drawn from the Strategic Planning Workshop and key to 
that deliberations were confined to the characteristics of the draft APP prepared for the programmes of the 2021/22 financial year, and the 
meeting reached consensus that: 

 all effected amendments, which are in line with the recommendations emanating from the report of Strategic Planning Workshop held 
on 30th October 2020, be taken as a true reflection 

 the implementation of Quality Management System (QMS) in terms of assessment and payment of principals be merged with the 
Programme Performance Indicator (PPI) “Integrated Quality Management System/Performance Management and Development 
Systems (IQMS/PMDS)” 
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 the description of the newly introduced PPI “IQMS/PMDS/QMS” be reviewed for the purpose of expressing the mandate of QMS in 
relation to implementation 

 given the motivation on documenting aspect “Workshop on MTEF Concepts” as an independent PPI instead of being incorporated into 
PPI “Post Provisioning”, collectively the meeting agreed on processing the said aspect as PPI 

 
The special and formal STANCO meetings mandated to monitor the implementation on administrative programmes of the North West Chamber 
were respectively held on 2nd October 2020 and 20th November 2020. 
 
In supporting an objective urging “to promote training and building capacity,…” as stipulated by sub-section 21.5 of ELRC Constitution, on the 
4th and 5th November 2020, the Chamber participated at the training advocating on the implementation of Collective Agreement No. 2 of 2020, 
aimed at training and assessing performance of school-based educators. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  
 
Not applicable. 
 
Changes to planned target  
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: 
North West 

93 98 5 

Total 93 98 5 
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Northern Cape 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Northern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd 
Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual 
Achievement for 
3rd Quarter 

Comments on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A consolidated report on the 
consultation process for post 
provisioning is made 
available and tabled at 
Chamber meeting 

Reports (3) 
 

Report tabled by the 
Employer to Chamber 
on the Appeals against 
the Educator Staff 
Establishments issued 

 

Achieved 
 
The meeting on the Appeals 
against the Educator Staff 
Establishments issued was 
held on 5th November 2020 
and presented to Chamber on 
14th December 2020 
 
 

None   

Educators Incentives  
Monitoring reports on 

the implementation of 
incentives for educators are 
available and presented at 
Chamber meeting 

Reports (3) 
 

A Report on the agreed 

criteria on qualifying 

schools presented at 

Chamber meeting by the 

employer  

 Achieved 
 
The meeting on the agreed 
criteria on qualifying schools 
was held on 5th November 
2020 and presented to 
Chamber on 14th December 
2020 
 

None   

Temporary Educators and 
Conversion 
Consolidated report on the 
appointment and 
conversions of temporary 
educators presented to 
Chamber 

Reports (3) 
 

Statistical report on the 

appointments and 

conversions of 

temporary educators 

presented to Chamber 

by the Employer  

Achieved 
 
The meeting on the 
appointments and conversions 
of temporary educators was 
held on 5th November 2020 
and presented to Chamber on 
14th December 2020 
 
 
 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Northern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd 
Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual 
Achievement for 
3rd Quarter 

Comments on deviations Status 

Integrated Quality 
Management System IQMS 
and Performance 
Management Development 
System (PMDS) 
Consolidated report on 
assessed and paid 
employees is made 
available and presented to 
Chamber 
 

Reports (2) 
 

A statistical report on 

IQMS and PMDS 

assessment presented 

by the Employer to 

Chamber  

 

Not Achieved 

 

Report (1) The statistical report on 

IQMS and PMDS 

assessment was not 

presented by the Employer, 

the report will be presented 

in the fourth quarter of 

2020/21. 

 

 

Advertisement and Filling 
of Promotional Posts 
Consolidated reports on the 
advertisement and filling of 
SMT posts tabled at 
Chamber meeting 

Reports (2) 
 

Statistical report on 

filling of posts presented 

by the employer and 

analysed in Chamber 

Achieved 

The meeting on the Statistical 

report on filling of posts was 

held on 5th November 2020 

and presented to Chamber on 

14th December 2020 

 

None   

Curriculum & Exams 
Consolidated reports on the 
implementation of the 
curriculum programmes and 
examination results to 
Chamber. 
 

Reports (4) The Employer is to 

report on the 

implementation of the 

Curriculum programmes 

to Chamber 

 Achieved 

The meeting on the 

implementation of the 

Curriculum programmes was 

held on 28th November 2020 

and presented to Chamber on 

14th December 2020 

 

 

None   

Teacher Development 
Consolidated reports on 
implementation of Teacher 
Development programmes 
presented to Chamber. 
 

Reports (4) The Employer is to 

report on the 

implementation of the 

Teacher Development 

Achieved 

The meeting on the 

implementation of the Teacher 

Development programmes 

was held on 28th November 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Northern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 3rd 
Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual 
Achievement for 
3rd Quarter 

Comments on deviations Status 

programmes to 

Chamber 

2020 and presented to 

Chamber on 14th December 

2020 

 

Dispute Prevention 
Reports on the Grievances, 
Misconduct and Disputes 
lodged tabled to Chamber 
 

Reports (3) 
 

The Employer to present 
a Provincial statistical 
report on grievances, 
disputes and misconduct 
cases at Chamber 
meeting 
 

Achieved 

The meeting on the Provincial 

statistical report on 

grievances, disputes and 

misconduct cases was held on 

29th November 2020 and 

presented to Chamber on 14th 

December 2020 

 

None   

Schools’ Safety  
Implementation of 
programmes on safety in 
schools are presented in 
Chamber 

Reports (3) 
 

 Statistical report by 
the Employer on 
schools’ safety to 
Chamber 

 Report on the 
implementation of 
the intervention 
and prevention 
programmes  
 

 Achieved 

The meeting on the Statistical 

report of schools’ safety and 

the implementation of the 

intervention and prevention 

programmes was held on 28th 

November 2020  and 

presented to Chamber on 14th 

December 2020 

 

None   
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Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
This report briefly reflects on activities held during the period under review. All the APP target meetings were held for the quarter under review 
except for one (Integrated Quality Management System IQMS and Performance Management Development System (PMDS) and the reports 
were adopted in the Chamber Meeting on 14th December 2020. 
 
A task team on the criteria for Educators Incentives was established to set up the criteria to be used for the new financial year of 2021/2022. 
 
Post Provisioning  

The Employer presented the report on Post Provisioning on the Appeals against the Educator Staff Establishments issued.  The Employer 
reported that the Staff Establishment was issued on 21st September 2020 to 555 schools: 518 Public Ordinary Schools, 11 Special Schools and 
26 Full-Service Schools. The closing date for Staff Establishment Appeals was set for 29th September 2020 and was later extended to 6th 
October 2020. 

The table below indicate the number of schools that appealed the 2021 Staff Establishment. 
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FB 13 7 1 2 0 0 2 1 1 17 8 2 

JTG 16 10 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 17 10 4 

NAM 11 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 3 0 

PKS 6 5 9 1 0 0 0 0 0 7 5 9 

ZFM 7 3 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 8 4 1 

Total 53 28 15 5 1 0 2 1 1 60 30 16 
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The Employer reported that all appeals would be finalised and the outcomes would be given to schools on or before 6th November 2020 and 
that the revised Establishments will be forwarded to Schools and District Offices, along with an explanatory letter. 

Educators’ Incentives 
 
The Employer presented the report of the Educators’ Incentives on the criteria on qualifying schools and reported that the Ministerial 
Determination, as promulgated in Government Gazette number 30678, volume 511 dated 18th January 2008, the Northern Cape Department of 
Education (NCDoE) has implemented the Teacher Incentive program for the past six years; and that the NCDoE, in conjunction with Formal 
Labour has subsequently elected to continue with the “REMOTE SCHOOLS” as the primary criteria in processing the 2019/20 and 2020/21 
Teacher Incentive programme.  
 
The Criteria continues to include the following:  

 Remote schools as identified by the Provincial Task Team on Incentives, based on the availability of specific amenities (as defined by 

Item 8.1, par D of the Ministerial Determination) 

 

 Remoteness determined by identifying schools 25 or more kilometres from: 

o Medical Facilities 

o Financial Facilities 

o Shopping complexes 

 Preference was given to No Fee Schools falling in Quintiles 1, 2 and 3, as well as All Special schools and educators have to be REQV 
13 and above 

o Payment and implementation of Incentives has also been subject to the signing of a Performance Contract by qualifying 

educators, as stipulated in the Incentive Schedule, par 7. 

 Furthermore, an agreed flat rate of R1200.00 per month was endorsed by both the employer and Labour, for each of the qualifying 
posts, across the identified schools. 

 
In maintaining the criteria for 2019/20 and 2020/21, the Employer reported that 264 schools have been identified to be incentivised, and that it 
was also furthermore agreed that the incentive programme be extended to include a two year period, using the aforementioned criteria. 
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Temporary Educators & Conversions 

 
The Employer presented a statistical report on the appointment and conversion of temporary educators. 
 

Temporary Educators 
 
The Employer reported that for the current school year, the Department had 1 685 vacant substantive posts at 465 Schools. 

 

District 

PL 1  NUMBER OF TEMPORARY EDUCATORS APPOINTED TO 

DATE 

Vacant Substantive 
posts 

Schools  

District Temporary Substitutes Grand Total 

Frances Baard 349 102  Frances Baard 441 65 506 

Pixley ka Seme 232 70  Pixley ka Seme 299 40 339 

JT Gaetsewe 662 157  JT Gaetsewe 801 37 838 

ZF Mgcawu 338 89  ZF Mgcawu 409 68 477 

Namaqua 104 47  Namaqua 135 24 159 

Total 1685 465  Total 2 085 234 2 319 

 
Conversions 
 
The Employer reported that the impact of COVID-19 due to suspected and confirmed positive cases led to the closure of several schools, the 
District Offices and Provincial Office. 
 
Despite that, the Department under difficult circumstances was attending to the finalisation of outstanding conversions. The Conversion letters 
have been processed and issued to the relevant Schools including the letters of those who did not qualify. 

 
The Employer also reported on the Action Plan for improving the conversion process for the third quarter in 2020. 
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   CONVERSION STATISTICAL REPORT Q1-2 

DISTRICTS TOTAL SUBMITTED QUALIFIED DO NOT QUALIFY 

FRANCES BAARD  84 63 21 

JT GAETSEWE 44 29 15 

PIXLEY KA SEME 35 25 10 

NAMAKWA 5 5 0 

ZF. MGCAWU 33 20 13 

TOTAL 201 142 59 

 
Integrated Quality Management System IQMS and Performance Management Development System (PMDS) 
 
The statistical report on IQMS and PMDS assessment was not presented by the Employer.  
 
Advertisement and Filling of Posts 
 
The Employer presented the Statistical report on filling of posts. The report was presented on 5th November 2020 and was not analysed in a 
Chamber Meeting for endorsement. 
 
The table below is the number of vacant substantive SMT posts that were advertised in September 2020 
 

SUMMARY OF SMT POSTS ADVERTISED 

DISTRICT  PRINCIPAL  DEPUTY PRINCIPAL 
DEPARTMENTAL 
HEAD  TOTAL 

Frances Baard 9 14 51 74 

JT Gaetsewe 19 16 77 112 

Namaqua 13 3 13 29 

Pixley ka Seme 12 7 33 52 
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ZF Mgcawu 5 9 24 38 

 Total 
  

58 49 198 305 

 
Curriculum and examination 

 
The Employer presented the report on the implementation of the Curriculum programmes which include: 
 

 Lock-In Sessions (Learners camping for a weekend and focusing on one subject). 

o Frances Baard had an average attendance of 71.2% 

o JT Gaetsewe had an average attendance of  88.8% 

o Namakwa had an average attendance of 61.5% 

o ZF Mgcawu had an average attendance of 68% 

o The number of learners supported:  Frances Baard (500); JT Gaetsewe (390); Namakwa (109) and ZF Mgcawu (493) 

o Two sessions were conducted in each of the districts 

 

 Saturday Classes (Consolidation of problematic content) 

o Frances Baard had an average attendance of 52.6%.  The Number of learners supported:  An average of 867 learners over two 

weekends 

o JT Gaetsewe had an average attendance of 77.3%.   The number of learners supported:  An average of 1002 learners over two 

weekends 

o Pixley Ka Seme had an average attendance of 71.9%.  The number of learners supported:  An average of 337 learners over two 

weekends 

 

 Extended Centre-Based and School-Based Spring Schools (Consolidation and revision sessions) 

o Centre-Based Spring Schools (Residential Centres) - 3890 learners were invited across all five districts 

o School-Based Spring Schools (Walk-In Centres) - 3418 earners were invited across all five districts 

The additional activities conducted include: 
o School internal intervention programmes 
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o Consolidation and revision sessions by Subject Specialists 

o Broadcasting support from Stellenbosch University 

o Telematics content made available for download by Stellenbosch University 

o Memory sticks with content donated 

Teacher development 

The Employer reported on the implementation of the Teacher Development programmes to Chamber and indicated that there were changes in 
the approach on training since Level 1. 
 
The Employer reported on the following Teacher Development programmes: 

 Advanced Diploma in Education - The training of Senior Phase educators in Mathematics and Natural Science to be done by North 
West University, had been postponed to January 2021. A blended approach was recommended (contact and online training) since the 
conditions in 2021 with regards to the pandemic were still unknown. 
 

 ETDP-SETA - The aim was to have the training in October and November 2020.   An agreement with the service provider was reached 
that the training would take place in 2021.  
 

 SACE Activities - A face-to-face refresher session on CPTD, Teacher’s Rights and Code of Ethics was conducted in three districts (ZF 
Mgcawu District Municipality, Pixley Ka Seme District and Frances Baard District) on 13th,15th and 16th October 2020. 
 

 ICT Programmes - include: COVID -19 online training; Training on the following platforms:  Microsoft Teams, Zoom, Google meet and 
Skype and distribution of training manual and video clips. 
 

 Teacher Appreciation and Support Programme  
o A proposed program for World Teachers Day and October Month Celebration was shared with stakeholders in a virtual meeting 

for inputs. The attendance was poor and little inputs were received. 
o Pictures, names and schools of teachers who succumbed to COVID-19 were sent to the Department of Basic Education (DBE). 
o A video clip of a learner appreciating teachers in Nama language and a former NTA winner video clip on sharing of best 

practices was available. 
o Sol Plaatje University (SPU) in partnership with NCDoE had a virtual webinar in celebration of World Teachers day on 8th 

October 2020. 
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o Teacher Development arranged a virtual financial wellness program for teachers with Old Mutual on 15th October 2020.  Due to 
poor attendance, a follow up session was held on 23rd October 2020. 
 

 Recruitment of Funza Lushaka Bursary applicants 
o Information on the Funza Lushaka Bursary has been shared on HRMS for principals of High Schools. 
o Screening forms have been sent to all districts offices to officials assisting with the distribution of forms to Grade 12 and out of 

school youth. 
o Further advocacy will be done via all relevant media platforms.  
o To date, 60 people have enquired about the process but actual completed forms are 20. 

 
 

Dispute Prevention 
 
The Employer presented the Provincial statistical report on grievances, disputes and misconduct cases.  The report was presented on 29th 
October 2020.  
 
The Employer presented the provincial statistical report on grievances, disputes and misconducts. Two reports were presented, which were 
based on the first and second quarters of the 2020/21 financial year.  

 
The Statistics presented were as follows: 

Q1 2020/21 (01 April 2020 – 30 June 2020)  Q2 2020/21 (01 July 2020 – 30 September 2020) 

 TOTAL 
RECEIVED 

FINALISED PENDING   TOTAL 
RECEIVED 

FINALISED PENDING 

Grievances 06 01 5  Grievances 07 04 03 

Misconduct 07 00 07  Misconduct 17 06 11 

Precautionary 
Suspension 

06 00 06  Precautionary 
Suspension 

07 01 06 

          Total amount/cost = R1, 693 976.75     Total amount/cost = R1, 962 576.50 

Conciliation 07 03 04  Conciliation 10 04 06 

Arbitration 18 01 17  Arbitration 21 03 18 

Labour Court 03 00 03   Labour Court 03 00 03 

Appeals 03 00 03  Appeals 03 01 02 
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School safety  
 
The Employer presented the implementation of the intervention and prevention programmes.   

 

Prevention programmes   
 
Identification of schools for alarm system 
A total of 40 schools were identified by the districts and 360 safety audits completed. 
 
The criteria for identification are as follows: 

 The school does not have an existing alarm system 

 The school has been identified as a hotspot / priority school 

 The school falls under quintiles 1-3 

 Availability of service provider in area for monitoring 
 

National strategy on Gender Based Violence (GBV) & Femicide 
The NCDOE response to the National Strategic Plan on Gender-based Violence and Femicide at schools in 2020/21 is outlined as follows: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In line with this, a total of 75 schools in ZF Mgcawu and Frances Baard districts would participate from 19th to 22nd October 2020. A total of 22 
District officials in JTG were trained on 14th October 2020 on the Protocol Sexual Harassment. 

 

 

 

KEY INTERVENTIONS KEY ACTIVITIES INDICATORS TARGET 
ACCOUNTABILITY / 

LEAD DEPT 

Change behaviour  and 

social norms that drive 

GBV with key groups 

using a variety of 

approaches 

Training on the Protocol 

for the reporting and 

management of sexual 

abuse and sexual 

harassment in schools 

Number of schools trained 

in the Protocol  (100 

schools) 

School Principals 

School Safety 

Coordinators, School 

Safety Committees 

  

DBE, DHET 
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 

 

The report for IQMS/PMDS will be presented in the fourth quarter Chamber Meeting to overcome the area of underperformance. 

 
Changes to planned target  
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: 
Northern Cape 

64 122 58 

Total 64 122 58 
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Western Cape 
 
Key performance indicators planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Western Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/2021 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 3rd 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A consolidated report 
on the consultation 
process for post 
provisioning is 
available. 
 

Reports (4) 
 

Report on anomalies on 
staff establishments is 
available by 31st 
December 2020 and 
presented to Chamber by 
the WCED 

Achieved 

 

A report on anomalies on 

staff establishments was 

tabled at the Transformation 

and Restructuring Task 

Team meeting on 22nd 

October 2020 

 

A report was presented to 

Chamber on 10th December 

2020 

 

None   

Dispute Prevention 
Monitoring report on 
grievances, 
misconduct, disputes, 
and training conducted 
is available 

Reports (4) 
 
 
 

Trends analysis reports on 
grievances, misconducts & 
disputes are presented to 
the Dispute Prevention 
Task Team by the WCED 
for analysing and a report 
is presented to Chamber 
by the 31st December 
2020 
 

Achieved 
 
Trends analysis reports on 
grievances, misconduct and 
disputes were presented to 
the Dispute Prevention Task 
Team by the WCED for 
analysis on 26th November 
2020 
 
A report was presented to 
Chamber on 10th December 
2020 
 
 
 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Western Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/2021 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 3rd 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Safety at Educational 
Institutions 
Monitoring report on 
the implementation of 
the Nine-point Safe 
Schools planning 
process is available  

Reports (3) A report on the 
implementation of the 
Nine-point Safe Schools 
planning process is 
submitted to the Safety at 
Schools Task Team by the 
Employer and presented 
to Chamber by the 31st 
December 2020 

Not Achieved 
 
A report was not submitted 
to the Safe Schools Task 
Team by the Employer on 
3rd November 2020 
 
A report could not be 
presented to Chamber on 
10th December 2020 
 

Report (1) The implementation of the 
Nine-Point Safety Strategy 
presented difficulties due to 
COVID-19 regulations. The 
Employer had to adjust their 
Management Plan to deal 
with COVID-19 related 
matters.  
 
The target will be 
addressed in the next 
financial year. 
 
 

 

Quality Management 
System (QMS)   
A consolidated report 
on the implementation 
of the capacity 
development 
interventions is 
available 

Reports (4) The Employer presents a 
report on capacity 
development interventions 
on QMS to Chamber by 
31st December 2020 

Achieved 
 
The Employer presented a 
report on capacity 
development interventions 
on QMS to the IQMS Task 
Team meeting on 12th 
November 2020 
 
A report was presented to 
Chamber on 10th December 
2020 
 

None   

 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
The presence of COVID-19 has not had a major impact on the activities of Chamber. Meetings were conducted on the virtual platform and was 
well attended. STANCO met on 8th October 2020 to determine meeting dates for task teams, Chamber, and the Strategic Planning Workshop. 
These meetings took place as follows: Early Childhood Development (ECD) Task Team 14th October 2020; Transformation and restructuring 
Task Team (TRTT) on 22nd October 2020; Safety at Schools Task Team on 3rd November 2020; Policy on Incapacity and Ill-health Retirement 
(PILIR) and Wellness Task Team on 10th November 2020; Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS) Task Team on 12th November 2020; 
Dispute Prevention Task Team (DPTT) on 26th November 2020; the Strategic Planning Workshop took place on 3rd and 4th December 2020 and 
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Chamber met on 10th December 2020. Reports of all the aforementioned activities were circulated after an activity took place to all Parties and 
tabled at the Chamber meeting on 10th December. 
 
Post Provisioning  
 
The WCED reported at the Transformation and Restructuring Task Team meeting held on 22nd October 2020 that there were no anomalies to 
report on in terms of the Post Provisioning process this year. Educator staff establishments for the 2021 academic year were released on 23rd 
September 2020 to Ordinary Public and Special Schools. A report was submitted to Chamber on 10th December 2020. 
 
Dispute Prevention  
 
WCED presented trends analysis reports to the Dispute Prevention Task Team (DPTT) meeting on 26th November 2020 and highlighted the 
following salient matters.  
 
The reports gave trends analysis on misconduct, grievances, and Disputes for the period 1st April 2020 to 30th September 2020. Misconduct 
cases 1st April 2020 to 30th September 2020: For the period under review the cases highlighted showed an increase of improper conduct and 
absenteeism in the rural districts. In the metropole districts the following cases were highlighted: failure to comply; absenteeism; improper conduct; 
and financial mismanagement. In terms of grievances reported for the period 1st April 2020 to 30th September 2020 in the rural districts, the 
following were highlighted: employment; promotions; financial and victimisation. In the metropole districts the following were highlighted: leave; 
promotion; financial; conduct of manager and employment. Disputes: 1st April 2020 to 30th September 2020 the following were highlighted in rural 
districts: unfair dismissal; financial; leave and posts. In the metropole districts the following were highlighted: unfair dismissal; unfair labour 
practice; financial; sexual inquiry and leave. 
 
 
Safety at Educational Institutions 
 
The Employer reported at the Safety at Schools Task Team held on 3rd November 2020 that the APP target on the implementation of the Nine-
Point Safety Strategy, is not included in the Safe School report.  They further indicated that they only had engagements with the Provincial 
COVID-19 Team and the COVID-19 Management Committees in the districts. They further indicated that districts have minimum contact with the 
schools and therefore there were no programs and meetings pertaining to the Nine-Point Safety Strategy plan. However, they only had online 
programs with the districts, such as sessions on the Education Continuity Plan via MS Teams. The implementation of the Nine-Point Safety 
Strategy presented difficulties due to COVID-19 regulations. They therefore had to adjust their Management Plan to deal with COVID-19 related 
matters. WCED presented the Safe Schools report, which highlighted the following salient points: 
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COVID-19 Management: Establishment of COVID-19 Management Structures within the three tiers namely Head Office, Districts and Schools. 
Adoption of the Transversal Walk-Through COVID-19 Risk Assessment Tool at Head Office, Districts and Districts managed schools. Developed 
a one-pager for bi-weekly reporting to Head Office by the Compliance Officers. Management of COVID-19 training for Compliance Officers at 
Head Office and District level with National Occupational Safety Association (NOSA). Face-to-face Risk assessment training for District Safe 
School Compliance Officers (DSSCOs) and Safe Schools Fieldworkers on COVID-19. Theory and Practical walk-through by Department of 
Community Safety (DoCS): Safety Risk Management – half day training. Development of WCED Policy on the Control of Chemical Substances 
and a Chemical Storage Checklist. The purpose of the policy is to ensure that hazardous or potentially hazardous substances are managed and 
stored according to the regulations for hazardous chemical substances. 
 
Role and function during COVID-19 reiterated: To coordinate and facilitate the implementation of the Department of Basic Education guidelines 
through: 

 Identifying needs by conducting risk assessments 

 Planning and conducting school safety training 

 Assist in establishing Occupational Health and Safety Act legal appointments 

 Providing advice and guidance 

 Assisting in school safety planning process 

 Developing and to facilitating orientation in alignment with COVID-19 guidelines for schools 

 Monitor and report by using prescribed reporting tools 
 
Strengthening of School Safety Committees (SSCs): Development and dissemination of Circular 0004/2020. Constitution of the SSC (Core & 
Elective Members). Terms of Reference of the SSC. Letters of appointment for all members of the SSC.  
 
Western Cape Government APEX Priorities: The WCED, through Education Safety Management: Safe Schools, as part of its Apex Safety Priority 
has in collaboration with Representative Council of Learners (RCL), Transform to Perform and Department of the Premier, identified several 
schools with a high incidence of school-based violence for support. Safe Schools focus is on School Based Crime Prevention Programmes in 
collaboration with relevant stakeholders. The aim is to reduce school-based crime and violence (learner–on–learner) and in so doing reduce the 
number of school-based violence incidents reported to the Safe Schools Call Centre. The scope includes the following, but is not limited to the 
following: Integrated holiday programs; after school activities; Cleaning-up campaigns; Back-to-school drives; sports; diversity; racism and 
homophobia, etc.  
 
Comparative statistics of First and Third Quarter totals 2019/2020 of incidents:  
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The table below depicts the year-on-year 2019/2020 statistics of incidents 

Categories Jan - March 
2019 

Jan - March 
2020 

April - June 
2019 

April - June 
2020 

July- Sept 
2019 

July- Sept 
2020 

Total 
2019 

Abuse 222 213 174 6 271 20 667 

Burglary/Vandalism 210 217 261 205 295 202 766 

Crime 328 330 308 17 452 73 1088 

Gang violence 90 57 91 23 143 39 324 

Governing Body 180 195 201 4 287 38 668 

Information 178 176 146 82 198 96 522 

Learner transport 5 2 3 0 4 0 12 

Trauma 21 48 38 3 54 9 113 

TOTAL 1234 1238 1222 340 1704 477 4160 

 
The report was submitted to the Chamber meeting on 10th December 2020. 
 
Quality Management System (QMS) 
 
WCED submitted and spoke to the report at the Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS) task team meeting held on 12th November 2020. 
The following salient matters were highlighted: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and social interaction restrictions placed during the various alert 
levels, the training of school-based educators in the QMS could not proceed as planned for 2020. The QMS Collective Agreement No. 2 of 2014 
was repealed and replaced on 17th September 2020 with amended Collective Agreement No. 2 of 2020. The amended agreement adopts a 
phased-in approach to the implementation of the QMS in that it will be implemented for principals from 1st January 2021 and for all other school-
based educators from 1st January 2022. Training and capacity building of users of the QMS must be conducted as follows: Principals: October–
December 2020; and all other school-based educators: January–December 2021.  
 
The amended QMS Agreement does not apply to school-based education therapists and psychologists. These officials will continue to use ELRC 
Collective Agreement No. 4 of 2005, until further notice. Training and implementation of Collective Agreement No. 2 of 2020 was communicated 
to all schools via Strategic People Management Minute 0007/2020. Refresher training for the Core Training Team (CTT) was conducted via Zoom 
by the ELRC on 5th October 2020. The National Training Teams (NTTs) for the Western Cape, Eastern Cape and Northern Cape were clustered 
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and trained together via Zoom on 12th November 2020. The NTT trained the Provincial Training Team (PTT) comprised of all Circuit Managers 
and five Employee Party representatives per district from 2nd – 6th November 2020. The number of participants who registered for training was 
129. Training of school principals is scheduled from 10th – 30th November 2020. While most training sessions will be conducted using Microsoft 
(MS) Teams, some Face-to-Face training is scheduled with the necessary safety protocols in place. Training for newly appointed principals is 
scheduled for February 2021. Training for Post Level (PL) 1 to PL3 is scheduled for April to November 2021. 
 
Additional activities reported at the Chamber meeting held on 10th December 2020 
 
Early Childhood Development (ECD)  
 
WCED at the task team meeting held on 14th October 2020 presented the ECD quarterly Status Report.  The following salient issues were 
highlighted: They have currently 113 qualified Grade R practitioners/educators paid by WCED. There are 96 915 learners enrolled in Grade R at 
either Public Ordinary Schools, Independent Schools, Special Schools and Pre-Primary schools. Functions of ECD for 2020 include: Providing 
classrooms in areas of greatest need based on poverty indices, demographic pressure, availability of land and sound financial management at 
school level. Register independent schools in areas of greatest based on poverty indices, demographic pressure, availability of land and sound 
financial and compliance with statutory regulations. Train students as ECD Practitioner Assistants (Level1), funded by an Incentive Conditional 
Grant. Trained Level 4 and 5 students for eighteen months in the necessary skills to teach in the Grade R class. Continue to provide transport to 
Grade R learners in rural areas and part of North District. Train and support School Governing Bodies (SGBs) and Senior Management Teams 
(SMTs) in financial management.  
 
Key issues in ECD: 
 
Grade R Learner Subsidies (Payment Methods): During lockdown, all schools seeking subsidy were contacted and asked to apply online. The 
district process was completed within a week, all payments were concluded by 15th May 2020. The system time periods have been shortened 
according to Circular 0041 of 2019. All entities receiving subsidy has been notified of the change in timeframes. The online system has been 
modified to include an official breakdown letter stipulating the payment split for all beneficiaries. Schools must be commended for doing work 
during lockdown. Timeframes were met during lockdown. The second tranche will be closed on 16th October 2020. They are not going to be able 
to change learner numbers if schools have not uploaded by 15th March 2020. Schools must upload learners as soon as possible to get maximum 
subsidy. Employee Parties indicated that quintile 4 and 5 schools are paying 80% of subsidy towards wages and asked how the minimum salary 
is determined. Employee Parties further indicated the reason for asking is because quintile 4 and 5 must make up the gap between wages and 
the subsidy, which they cannot always afford as it puts strain on the schools. WCED responded that the minimum salary is determined by National 
Treasury. They could ask that information from their Finance Department because they follow prescripts from National.  
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Training and Professional Development: National Curriculum Framework (NCF) Training: During the lockdown period, a decision had to be made 
as to how they will change the training programme to align with social distancing. The College of Cape Town has developed the NCF Moodle 
platform for a blended learning platform. Due to austerity measures the budget for training has been cut. The target to be trained is 1500 
practitioners. The target audience are the departmental officials from the Department of Health, Social Development and City of Cape Town. All 
provinces are mandated to train all departmental officials in the ECD sector. The last training of this nature was held in 2015. Training will take 
place after lockdown with the following components: zero-rated digital programme; learning material links; google small group tasks/work; live 
session meetings; slides, and drive links to access material after presentations. The training budget per participant has not increased, all 
participants will be notified that lunch will not be included in training. Curriculum Development: Grade R: Improving the quality of teaching and 
learning. 
 
Conditions of Service for Grade R Practitioners: The challenge is the incorrect input at school level, the qualification is not vetted by principals 
but signed off. The migration of qualified practitioners to teachers causes the move from Grade R to Grades 1-3. The WCED must create posts 
to stabilise the workforce in this sector. According to the timelines for the shift in function Grade R is expected to become compulsory in 2022. A 
New Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) and contracts will be sent to SGBs for sign-off before the First Tranche 2020.  
 
Learners with disabilities: Special Schools have increased the number of practitioners in the project to ensure early identification of learners at 
risk. The Autism Syndrome Disorder (ASD) and South African Sign Language (SASL) course will be rolled out in collaboration with the Special 
Learners with Educational Needs (SLEN) Directorate within WCED. Severely handicapped child was added. They have reduced the waiting list 
for special needs and now the department have access. 
 
Statistical Reports on Quintile Provisioning: An increase in the number of schools applying for subsidy is expected in the current financial climate. 
An upsurge in the number of new Independent Sites wanting to be registered has been experienced. The Pro-Poor Policy according to Grade R 
Norms and Standards funding will apply. Employee Parties indicated that the pro-poor policy around quintiles 1, 2 and 3 need to look at the 
impact of COVID-19 at all levels, particularly on the working-class child. The Employee Parties thanked the Directorate for all the efforts and hard 
work that they have done during the COVID-19 pandemic period because they are appreciating it. They also cautioned WCED on the virtual 
platforms they are and were using because not all schools, learners and parents have access to these modern technologies, due to economic 
constraints and the working-class learners are the most vulnerable and marginalised. 
 
Transformation and Restructuring  
 
WCED presented a report at the Transformation and Restructuring Task Team (TRTT) meeting on 22nd October 2020. The following salient 
matters were highlighted:  
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Excess Educators: The Department started with a total number of 174 excess educators at ordinary schools at the beginning of the 2020 academic 
year. As of 16th October 2020, the total number of excess educators reduced to 122. Monthly monitoring is done on the absorption/placement of 
excess educators where vacancies are created due to service terminations.  
 
Funza Lushaka: WCED managed to place 380 Funza Lushaka Bursary holders which represented 59% of the eligible list of 656 Funza Lushaka 
bursary holders that completed their studies against vacant substantive posts as of 12th October 2020. One hundred and thirty-one, which 
presented 21% of Funza Lushaka bursary holders, have been appointed in School Governing Body (SGB) posts. The Directorate: Strategic 
People Management monitors the placement of Funza Lushaka bursary holders monthly and communicates the status of placements and 
provides a list of non-placements to district offices through the office of the Chief Director: Districts.  
 
Recruitment and Selection (R&S) 
 
Post Level 1 Conversions: The Directorate: Recruitment and Selection is responsible for the appointment of Post Level 1 educators via Section 
6A and 6B of the Employment of Educators Act (conversion from temporary to permanent employment). This process is open throughout the 
year and published circulars are aligned to Collective Agreement 4 of 2018.  The total number of contract educators reduced with 214 during the 
period 1st September 2020 to 16th October 2020. The table below depicts the number of contract educators in the system: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
As of 31st August 2020, the Department received 1 000 applications. Of these, 592 cases were processed. A total of 516 applications were 
approved, 52 applications were disapproved, 24 applications are awaiting an outcome and the rest of the applications are still being verified in 
respect of compliance with the process. The conversion report for the period 1st January 2020 to 16th October 2020 per District is reflected in the 
table below: 
 

Contract Educators 

31st August 2020 5600 

-214 16th October 2020 5386 

Districts 6A 6B Grand Total 

Cape Winelands 166 45 211 

Eden & Central Karoo 154 39 193 

Metro Central 4 4 8 

Metro East 1 2 3 
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Filling of Posts:  
WCED tabled a statistical report on the filling of post for the period 2019 to 2020. Four Vacancy Lists and one Special Vacancy List were issued 
during the period and the process of filling posts were divided into different categories.  The graph below indicates the number of posts advertised 
per Vacancy List; Recruitment and Selection (R&S) work in progress per vacancy list; the number of posts approved or finalised per vacancy list; 
labour relations cases per vacancy list; number of posts approved for re-advertisement per vacancy list; the number of erroneously advertised 
posts per vacancy list and the number of nominations not received per vacancy list.   
 

 

Metro North 17 4 21 

Overberg 39 13 52 

West Coast 81 23 104 

Grand Total 462 130 592 
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Policy on Incapacity and Ill-health Retirement (PILIR) and Disease Profile 
 
WCED indicated that they do not have a PILIR report available this quarter because they did not receive the report from the service provider and 
when they do receive the report they have internal protocols to follow before it could be availed to stakeholders. The report will only be available 
at the next task team meeting. 
 
Employee Health and Wellness 
 
WCED tabled and spoke to the report which gave a breakdown of Employee Health and Wellness activities that took place for the period of July 
– September 2020. The following salient points were highlighted: Employee Health and Wellness Days & Employee Information Sessions days 
were postponed due to the pandemic. Utilisation of Metropolitan Health (MH) Services increased since the previous quarter. The total engagement 
rate for July - September 2020 was 4.45%. Psycho-Social Issues: The top five problem clusters with secondary problems employees experienced 
during the quarterly reporting period. It should be noted that COVID-19 (Health and Lifestyle) presented with the highest cases, as employees 
sought assistance for anxiety related to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  The services that were sought related to COVID-19 related grief and COVID-
19 related trauma. Through the Employee Assistance Portal, Hello Doctor, and the dedicated Call Centre the Western Cape Education 
Department’s (WCED) employees have a team of medical professionals to get medical advice for any health-related matters. Work related matters 

presented with 18 cases, this was related to Managerial Consultancy, Conflict with Managers, Disciplinary Issues and lack support at work. The 
table below summarises a breakdown of individual cases conducted by Metropolitan Health for both Educators and Public Service. 

 
Severity Primary Reason Secondary Reason Quarter 2 Quarter 1 

 

 

1 

 

 

COVID-19 

Anxiety 13 3 

COVID-19 related grief 10 0 

COVID-19 related trauma 8 0 

Fear of self/significant other contracting the virus 5 3 

  Managerial consultancy 18 8 
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Severity Primary Reason Secondary Reason Quarter 2 Quarter 1 

2 Work related Conflict with colleague 5 0 

Absenteeism 2 1 

Adapting to organisational change 2 1 

 

3 

 

Psychological 

Depression 17 8 

Panic attacks 3 4 

Phase of life/adjustment issues 3 6 

Psychiatric assessment required 2 0 

 

4 

 

Relationships 

Divorce 9 4 

Marital conflicts 8 1 

Emotional abuse 3 0 

Extra marital affairs 3 2 

 

5 

 

Family 

Family member related 10 4 

Child behavioural problems 5 6 

Parental guidance 3 1 

Child bereavement 2 2 
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Due COVID-19, the Employer had minimum contact with the schools and therefore there were no programs and meetings pertaining to the Nine-
Point Safety Strategy plan. Since safety at schools is a priority in the Western Cape to minimise the scourge, Parties agreed to have the same 
targets included in the Annual Performance Plan 2021/2022 to strengthen the processes in place. 
 
Changes to planned target  
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 
Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: 
Western Cape 

61 82 21 

Total 61 82 21 
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PROGRAMME 2 DISPUTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES  
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Programme 2 is to manage disputes proactively. This includes prevention of disputes by defusing conflicts that can disrupt 
teaching and learning and it also includes dispute resolution. Professional development and training is included in Programme 2 to ensure that 
Dispute Resolution Practitioners and Panellists operate effectively. Particular emphasis is placed on training that helps to protect the rights of 
children involved in special disputes. 
 
Sub-programmes 

 Conciliation and pre-arbitration services 

 Arbitration services 

 Training of Dispute Resolution Practitioners and/or Negotiators 

 Professional Training and Development of Panellists  

 Quality control of awards and rulings 
 
Strategic Objectives 

 To provide efficient dispute resolution services 

 To ensure quality over arbitration awards 

 To provide Professional Development to Panellists 
 

Dispute Management Services 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement – 3rd Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Provision of dispute resolution services 

Cases in jurisdiction are scheduled 
for conciliation  

Processing of all 
cases in 
jurisdiction within 
30 days 

All cases in jurisdiction are 
processed (scheduling or 
issuing of certificates) 

Not Achieved 
 
97,8% 
 
89 
 
Out of 157 cases 
received, 91 cases 
were conciliated. Out 
of 91 cases which 

-2,2% Two cases were 
scheduled outside of 
the 30-day period. 
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Dispute Management Services 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement – 3rd Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

were conciliated, 89 
were conciliated within 
30 days. 

To schedule 60% of cases 
scheduled for arbitration within 45 
days after receipt of dispute 
referral 

To schedule 60% 
of cases 
scheduled for 
arbitration within 
45 days after 
receipt of dispute 
referral 

To schedule 60% of cases 
scheduled for arbitration within 
45 days after receipt of dispute 
referral 

Achieved 
 
88,46% 
 
46 
 
Out of 52 cases which 
were arbitrated, 46 
were arbitrated within 
45 days and six cases 
were arbitrated outside 
the 45-day period 
 

+28,46% Zoom scheduling of 
cases. 

 

60% of sexual misconduct cases 
scheduled for inquiry by arbitrator 
within 60 days after receipt of 
referral 
 

To schedule 60% 
of sexual 
misconduct cases 
for inquiry by 
arbitrator within 60 
days after receipt 
of the referral  

To schedule 60% of sexual 
misconduct cases for inquiry 
by arbitrator within 60 days 
after receipt of the referral  

Achieved 
 
71,42% 
 
10 
 
The Council received 
22 cases of alleged 
sexual misconduct.  
The Council scheduled 
14 cases of sexual 
misconduct through 
Inquiry by Arbitrator. 
Out of 14 sexual 
misconduct cases, 10 
were scheduled for 
Inquiry by Arbitrator 
within 60 days 
 

+11, 42% Zoom scheduling of 
cases. 

 

100% Quality Control (QC) done in 
all arbitration awards concluded 

100% Quality 
Control (QC) done 

100% of all awards are quality 
controlled by Senior 
Commissioners 

Achieved 
 
100% 

None   
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Dispute Management Services 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement – 3rd Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

in all arbitration 
awards concluded 

 
41 awards received 
were quality controlled 
 

Facilitate two (2) training sessions 
for professional development of 
Panellists 

Facilitate two (2) 
training sessions 
for professional 
development of 
Panellists 

Facilitate one (1) training 
sessions for professional 
development of Panellists, 
maintain an attendance 
register 
 

Not Achieved 
 
 

One (1) training session Training has been 
deferred to the fourth 
quarter of 2020/21.  

 

Facilitate two (2) training sessions 
for Dispute Resolution 
Practitioners  
 

Facilitate two (2) 
training sessions 
for Dispute 
Resolution 
Practitioners 

Facilitate one (1) training 
session for Dispute Resolution 
Practitioners and maintain 
attendance register 

Achieved  
 
One (1) training 
session 

None   

 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
The Council continues to minimise frivolous requests for postponements, as well as reduce the high number of adjournments by enforcing Clause 
45 of the ELRC constitution. The increase in requests for postponements negatively affect the turn-around times for conciliation and arbitration 
processes, thus affecting the performance of the Dispute Management section. The Council also encourages Panellists to enforce clause 54 of 
the ELRC constitution in an effort to discourage inadequate preparation for hearings and requests for postponement.  
 
In hearings where a child is a victim or a witness, the Council continues to ensure that appropriate venues are booked for these special hearings, 
e.g. Magistrate Court, Children’s Court or Teddy Bear Clinic (Johannesburg) and Department of Social Development in Free State and Northern 
Cape. The Council will also ensure that Intermediaries are appointed to protect the rights of the child, as stipulated in Section 28 of the 
Constitution, “The Right of the child is of paramount importance in all matters concerning the child”. The Council continues to recruit Panellists, 
Interpreters and Intermediaries in order to improve on its efficiencies. 
 
As a way of improving efficiencies, the Council continues to enforce compliance by ensuring that Panellists submit arbitration awards to the ELRC 
within 14 days of the conclusion of arbitration proceedings, in terms of clause 18.5 of the ELRC constitution.   
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The majority of disputes referred to the Council are on unfair labour practice related to promotions and appointments and dismissals. In a bid to 
address these disputes, the Council continues to rely on the Dispute Prevention Task Teams to resolve these areas of concern. The Council has 
committed to assist the Provincial District Prevention Task Teams by providing them with statistics on disputes which are referred every month, 
so that they can develop some intervention strategies to resolve and finalise grievances.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 
 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Dispute 
Management 
Services 

R’000 R’000 R’000 

Dispute 
Resolution 
Services 

3,415 4,936 1,520 

Total R3,415  R4,936  R1,520  
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ANNEXURE A: DISPUTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 
 Dispute Management Services: Basic Education 
 Dispute Management Services: Higher Education and Training (TVET) 
 Training of Dispute Resolution Practitioners 
 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 

The ELRC received a total of 157 disputes during the period under review. Of the 157 disputes received, 102 (64.96%) were “In 
jurisdiction”, 55 (35.3%) were found to be “Out of Jurisdiction”. 
 
DISPUTES REFERRED BY PROVINCE            

KZN GP EC NW WC FS LP NC MP NAT TOTAL 

30 25 24 17 16 15 13 10 07 0 157 
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For the period under review, Kwazulu-Natal was the highest referring province with 30 cases referred. This was followed by Gauteng with 25; 
Eastern Cape with 24; North West with 17; Western Cape with 16; Free State with 15; Limpopo with 13; Northern Cape with 10 and Mpumalanga 
with seven disputes referred in the quarter under review. 
 
Disputes Referred by Nature: October to December 2020 

         

Provinces ULP Promo/App Other ULP 
Unfair 
dismissal 

Special 
dismissal 
related to 
abuse of 
learners BCEA 

Interpretation of 
Collective 
Agreements Mutual Interest Total 

EC 8 11 4 0 1 0 0 24 

GP 2 9 9 4 1 0 0 25 

FS 0 14 0 0 1 0 0 15 

LP 0 7 5 0 0 1 0 13 

MP 0 3 4 0 0 0 0 7 

NW 0 8 7 0 0 2 0 17 

NC 0 5 0 0 0 5 0 10 

WC 5 5 3 3 0 0 0 16 

KZN 17 7 5 0 1 0 0 30 

NAT                 

Total 32 69 37 7 4 8 0 157 

         
Of the 157 disputes that were referred, 32 related to ULP-Promotion and Appointments; 69 to Other Unfair Labour Practice; 37 to Alleged Unfair 
Dismissal; four were BCEA; eight were Interpretation of Collective Agreements and seven were referred in terms of Section 188A (Inquiry by 
Arbitrator) of the Labour Relations Act. 
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In Jurisdiction as per nature: October to December 2020 

         

Provinces ULP Promo/App Other ULP 
Unfair 
dismissal 

Special 
dismissal 
related to 
abuse of 
learners BCEA 

Interpretation of 
Collective 
Agreements Mutual Interest Total 

EC 3 4 1 0 1 0 0 9 

GP 1 6 7 2 1 0 0 17 

FS 0 11 0 0 1 0 0 12 

LP 0 5 4 0 0 1 0 10 

MP 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 4 

NW 0 4 5 0 0 2 0 11 

NC 0 5 0 0 0 5 0 10 

WC 2 5 2 1 0 0 0 10 

KZN 9 6 3 0 1 0 0 19 

NAT                 

Total 15 47 25 3 4 8 0 102 

         
Of the 157 disputes that were received, 102 were “In Jurisdiction”. Of the 102 that were “In Jurisdiction” 15 related to ULP – Promotion and 
Appointments; 47 related to Other Unfair Labour Practice; 25 related to Unfair dismissals; three related to Inquiry by Arbitrator (Special disputes), 
four related to BCEA; eight related to Interpretation and Application of Collective Agreements. 

 
Out of Jurisdiction as per nature: October to December 2020 

         

Provinces ULP Promo/App Other ULP 
Unfair 
dismissal 

Special 
dismissal 
related to 
abuse of 
learners BCEA 

Interpretation of 
Collective 
Agreements Mutual Interest Total 

EC 5 7 3 0 0 0 0 15 

GP 1 3 2 2 0 0 0 8 
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FS 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

LP 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 

MP 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 

NW 0 4 2 0 0 0 0 6 

NC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

WC 3 0 1 2 0 0 0 6 

KZN 8 1 2 0 0 0 0 11 

NAT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 17 22 12 4 0 0 0 55 

         
Out of the 55 disputes found to be out of jurisdiction; 17 related to ULP-Promotion and Appointments; 22 were other ULP’s; 12 related to Unfair 
Dismissals; and four related to Inquiry by Arbitrator. It must be noted that the substantive amounts of disputes that were screened as out of 
jurisdiction were due to defective and incomplete referrals, including those that were referred outside time-frames and condonation was not 
granted. 

 
Processes Conducted: October to December 2020 
 

Provinces 
Conciliation/Pre 
Arbitration Arbitration Total 

EC 24 88 112 

GP 9 54 63 

FS 5 5 10 

LP 18 40 58 

MP 3 11 14 

NW 15 21 36 

NC 13 12 25 

WC 15 43 58 

KZN 33 89 122 

NAT 0 0 0 

Total 135 363 498 
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A total of 498 events were conducted for the period under review. Of these 498 were event/processes, 135 were conciliations and 498 were 
arbitration events.  Ordinarily each conciliation is concluded in a single event. Arbitrations are often conducted more than once, depending on 
the complexity of each dispute.  
 
Disputes finalised by outcome: October to December 2020 

          

Province 
Withdrawn 
Conc. Settled Conc.  

Withdrawn 
Arb.  Dismissed Arb.  Settled Arb.  Award Rulings 

Special 
Awards Total 

EC 5 1 3 2 0 11 2 0 24 

GP 2 0 2 0 4 5 4 0 17 

FS 5 0 0 2 3 1 0 0 11 

LP 1 1 3 0 2 3 0 0 10 

MP 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 

NW 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 3 

NC 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 3 

WC 2 1 1 0 2 3 1 2 12 

KZN 0 1 1 0 0 7 2 1 12 

NAT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 15 4 12 4 11 34 10 3 93 

          
The ELRC finalised 98 disputes during the period under review.  A total of 37 arbitration awards were rendered. A total of 11 disputes were settled 
at arbitration, while four were settled at conciliation. Withdrawn disputes amounted to a total of 27, with 12 being withdrawn at conciliation and 15 
withdrawn at arbitration. Four cases were dismissed at arbitration and 10 rulings were handed down in the period under review. 
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Arbitrations heard in the period: October to December 2020 

         

Province 2020/2021 2019/2020 2018/2019 2017/2018 2016/2017 2015/2016 
OTHER OLD 
CASES Total 

KZN 24 53 11 2 0 0 0 90 

FS 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 5 

EC 30 50 7 0 1 0 0 88 

GP 8 39 0 3 1 0 3 54 

WC 6 29 8 0 0 0 0 43 

NW 0 11 2 1 0 0 0 14 

NC 0 6 1 0 0 0 0 7 

LP 0 19 7 3 0 2 0 31 

MP 2 8 1 0 0 0 0 11 

Total 70 220 37 9 2 2 3 343 

         
A total of 343 disputes were scheduled for arbitration in the period under review. Of the 343 arbitrations heard, 70 are for the 2020/21 financial 
year, 220 are for the 2019/20 financial year and 53 emanate from previous financial years. 
 
Cases carried over from previous period 

         

Province 2020/2021 2019/2020 2018/2019 2017/2018 2016/2017 2015/2016 OLD CASES Total 

KZN 66 34 15 2 0 0 0 117 

FS 10 11 5 0 0 0 0 26 

EC 32 27 5 0 0 0 0 64 

GP 20 32 1 2 2 0 2 59 

WC 17 9 5 0 0 0 0 31 

NW 0 27 16 7 0 0 0 50 

NC 0 12 3 2 0 0 0 17 
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LP 0 21 11 13 1 1 0 47 

MP 3 5 8 0 0 0 0 16 

Total 148 178 69 26 3 1 2 427 

         
A total of 427 cases from previous financial years are to be carried over to the fourth quarter of the 2020/21financial year. Of these, 148 are from 
the 2020/21 financial year; 178 are for the 2019/20 financial year, while 100 cases are from previous years and remain unresolved.   
 
Postponements and adjournments: October to December 2020 

    

Province Postponements Adjournments Total 

KZN 4 0 4 

FS 1 0 1 

WC 4 0 4 

GP 6 0 6 

EC 11 0 11 

NW 1 5 6 

NC 0 4 4 

MP 1 0 1 

LP 14 13 27 

Total 42 22 64 

    
A total of 42 cases were postponed for the period under review and 22 adjournments took place.  
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Active Inquiry by Arbitrator 
 

   

Province 2020/2021 2019/2020 Total 

FS 3 5 8 

MP 0 1 1 

NC 0 3 3 

WC 4 5 9 

EC 1 6 7 

NW 0 1 1 

KZN 18 7 25 

GP 7 5 12 

LP 0 1 1 

Total 33 34 67 

    
The Council is dealing with 67 cases which are being dealt with through Inquiry by Arbitrator, in terms of Collective Agreement 3 of 2018. 
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2.2 TRAINING OF DISPUTE RESOLUTION PRACTITIONERS AND PANELLISTS 
 

2.2.1. PANELLISTS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION PRACTITIONERS (DRPs) PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
The Council conducted professional training of Dispute Resolution Practitioners (Employee Representative) Collective Agreement 
No. 3 of 2018 as follows: 

 Western Cape on 25th November 2020 
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PROGRAMME 3 CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Programme 3 is to provide support services to the core operational functions of the Council, to ensure that it delivers an efficient 
and effective service on its mandates.   
 
Sub-programmes: 

 Mobilising Employee Services 

 Communication Services 

 Information Communication Technology (ICT) 
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To professionalise the ELRC by investing in human capital 

 To promote the corporate image of the ELRC 

 To ensure the continuous availability, reliability, effectiveness and efficiency of ICT systems 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Human Resources 

 
Human Resources 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/2021 

Planned Target 
For 3rd   Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd  Quarter 

Deviation from planned target 
to Actual Achievement for 3rd    

Quarter  

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Building capacity by ensuring 
that employees are trained and 
developed. 
 

9 employees to 
participate in skills 
development and 
provide proof of 
attendance. 

n/a 
 

n/a n/a  
 

*This is a bi-annual 
target that only relates 
to the first and fourth 
quarters of the 2020/21 
financial year. 
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Human Resources 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/2021 

Planned Target 
For 3rd   Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd  Quarter 

Deviation from planned target 
to Actual Achievement for 3rd    

Quarter  

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Monitor and manage the 
Performance Management 
System 

Collate and verify 
completeness of 
the performance 
contracts and 
assessments as 
per the timeframes 
provided  
 
Provide an 
accurate  
Moderation 
Committee report 
to the General 
Secretary one 
week after the 
Moderation 
Committee 
meeting   
 
 

Prepare and submit a 
quarterly Moderation 
Committee report to the 
General Secretary within 
a month after the 
Moderation Committee 
meeting 
 

Achieved 
 
A report was submitted to 
the General Secretary 
 

None    

Management of Compensation 
and benefits for all staff 

Maintain accurate 
and complete 
payroll Masterfile 
and database 
 
 

Maintain accurate and 
complete payroll 
Masterfile and database 

Achieved 
 
The payroll processing for 
all staff was accurately 
completed and monitored 
for the quarter under 
review 
 

None   

Provide Wellness programmes 
to employees 

Conduct six (6) 
Employee 
Wellness 
programmes per 
annum as per the 
annual plan 

One (1) employee 
wellness programmes to 
be conducted during the 
quarter 

Achieved 
 
Employees were provided 
with a financial fitness 
workshop by FNB 

None  
 

  

 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
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Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets. 
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Research & Media 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Research & Media 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd  
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Advertising and 
marketing to improve 
the image of the 
council 
 

Conduct 
advertising 
campaigns in 
line with 
Marketing Plan 
for 2020/21 to 
market the 
Council 

 

Marketing on social 
media platforms 
(quarterly activity) 
 
 

 

Achieved 
 
Marketing on social media 
platforms (quarterly activity). 
 
There following posts were 
made on the Council’s social 
media pages:  

 1st October 2020 - 
Breast Cancer 
Awareness  

 5th October 2020 – 
World Teachers’ Day  

 29th October 2020 – 
World Stroke Day 

 2nd November 2020 
– Congratulatory 
Message to the 
Matriculants  

 12th November 2020 
– World Pneumonia 
Day  

 14th November 2020 
– World Diabetes 
Day  

 14th November 2020 
– Happy Diwali  

 25 November 2020 – 
16 Days of Activism 
Against Gender 
Based Violence  

 1st December 2020 – 
World AIDS Day 

None  
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Research & Media 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd  
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

 3rd December 2020 – 
International Day of 
Persons with 
Disabilities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Advertising in 

publications of Parties 
to Council (annual 
activity) 

 

Achieved 
 
This target was achieved in the 
second quarter of the 2020/21 
financial period.  
 
The Council’s advertisement 
was published in NAPTOSA’s 
Insight Magazine. 
Advertising in publications of 
Parties to Council  

 

None  

 
  

Advertising in diaries 
of unions (SADTU, 
SAOU, PEU, 
NAPTOSA, NATU) 

Achieved 
 
The ELRC advertised in the 
diaries of the following unions: 
 

 SADTU 

 NATU 

 PEU 

 NAPTOSA 
 
SAOU is not publishing diaries 
for their members in 2021.  

 

None  
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Research & Media 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd  
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Implementation of a 
digitised records 
management solution 
to preserve Council 
records 

Implementation 
of a records 
management 
solution for 
Council’s 
physical and 
electronic 
records 

 

Testing of e-records 
management system 
 
Training of ELRC 
users on e-records 
management system 

 

Achieved  
 
This is a fourth quarter target 
that was achieved in the third 
quarter.  
 
Testing of e-records 
management system was done 
in the period under review and 
admin users received training 
on the system 

 

None  

 
  

 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 

 
As part of the Council’s marketing campaign, the Council increased its visibility through regular postings on its social media platforms throughout 
the quarter.  
 
The Council’s advert was place in SADTU’s 30th Anniversary Publication. The Council further advertised in NAPTOSA; PEU; SADTU and NATU’s 
2021 diaries.  
 
ELRC branded material was donated for the KwaZulu-Natal Education Department Programme on 3rd December 2020, where the MEC of 
Education and other education officials acknowledged the contributions and support of the Indian community towards vulnerable learners and 
the broader school community of the Beacon Ridge Primary School in Chatsworth, Durban.   
 
In relation to records management, the e-records system was tested during the reporting period and the administrative users received training 
on the system.  

 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable. 
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Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
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Information Communication Technology  
 
Key performance indicators planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Information Communications Technology 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd    Quarter 

Actual 
Achievement 
3rd    Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 3rd  Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Average of 99.9% of 
network and 90% of 
Business Continuity 
VPN connection of 
severs uptime on a 
daily basis and 
issue a monthly 
report 

ICT network and 
Business Continuity 
VPN connection score 
uptime of severs, 
maintained at average 
of 99.9% and 90% by 
monitoring the 
effectiveness of the 
network and an 
average of 24 hours to 
restore the server and 
issue the report  
 

Monitor network, 
VPN, low disk 
space, memory 
usage and 
bandwidth usage to 
maintain average 
score of 99.9 % of 
network and 90 % 
server uptime using 
network monitoring 
tool and 
preventative 
maintenance and 
ICT services (Sage 
Evolution, DMS 
APP, Emails and 
people) to be 
restored within 24 
hours and issue a 
report 

Achieved  
 
ICT successfully 
maintained the 
average 
performance score 
of 99.9 % of 
network and 90 % 
server uptime to 
ensure Business 
Continuity and 
system availability.  

None   

Provide evidence of 
ICT governance 
frameworks 
compliance on 
quarterly basis and 
issue the report. 
Review and update 
of ICT Strategy, 
submit to EXCO for 
approval and 
monitor the 
implementation of 
the ICT strategy on 
a quarterly basis 

Approved revised ICT 
Strategic Plan policy 
by updating 
governance 
framework on policy 
on quarterly basis and 
issue the report 

Submit revised ICT 
Strategic Plan policy 
to EXCO for 
approval 

Achieved  
 
The ICT Strategic 
Plan policy was 
approved by EXCO 
on 4th of August to 
ensure ICT 
functions support 
Council corporate 
strategy and 
objectives. 
Compliance with 
ICT frameworks and  
legislations  

None   
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Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 

 
 Quarterly testing of the Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) was conducted in the quarter under review to ensure business continuity  

 Microsoft exchange 2010 upgrade to office 365 was completed to ensure 99,9 % email availability, two factor authentication security 
layer and business continuity  

 Monitoring and reviewing of network audit logs using IT Audit Software to ensure that abnormally activities are detected and blocked 

 Configuration of Wi-Fi access pints in the tenant area. 

 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  

 
Linking performance to budget 
 

Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Corporate 
Services  

R’000 R’000 R’000 

Human 
Resources 

1,696 1,871 176 

Information 
Technology 

532 637 104 

Communication 
Services  

3 244 240 
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Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Total 2,231 2,751 521 
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ANNEXURE B: MOBILISING EMPLOYEE SERVICES 
 
Overview of the Human Resources Department’s performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The quarterly report summarises the Human Resources activities for the quarter under review. The issues that are discussed include recruitment, 
resignations (turnover), vacancies, employment equity, personnel expenditure, training and skills development, employee wellness and employee 
relations.  
 
RECRUITMENT/APPOINTMENTS 
 
None during the period under review. 
 
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS MATTERS 
 
Ten warning letters were issued to eight employees during the period under review. Of the ten warning letters, two were due to poor performance 
and eight were due to overspending on the Council’s 3G data cards. 
 
FURTHER STUDIES AND SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 
 
No training was conducted during the period under review. 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 
The Moderation Committee convened its meeting during the quarter under review and a report of the Performance Assessment for the quarter 
under review was submitted to the General Secretary.  
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EMPLOYEE WELLNESS 
 
Employees were provided with financial fitness guidelines through a workshop conducted by FNB. This was done to assist staff to manage their 
finances in the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic. Furthermore, it was also to assist staff on how to minimise debts and save for the future. 
 
RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENT 
 

No resignation during the period under review. 
 
Leave Report: October to December 2020 
 

Corporate Services Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 48 

SICK LEAVE 1 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  0 

STUDY  0 

 

Office of the CFO Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 80 

SICK LEAVE 17 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  1 

STUDY  17 

 

Executive Services Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 15 

SICK LEAVE 1 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  0 

STUDY  7 
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Dispute Management Services Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 35 

SICK LEAVE 0 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  2 

STUDY  19 

 

Collective Bargaining Services Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 186 

SICK LEAVE 29 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  10 

STUDY  0 

 
Personnel cost by programme 

 

Programme 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

 Total 
Expenditure 
for the entity 

(R’000)  

Personnel exp. 
as a % of total  
exp. (R’000) 

No. of 
employees 

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee 

(R’000) 

Collective Bargaining R11,434  R14,894  77% 21 R 544 

Dispute Management Services R3,609  R7,264  50% 7 R 516 

Corporate Services R4,668  R6,898  68% 8 R 583 

Finance and Supply Chain 
Management 

R6,566  R11,580  
57% 17 R 386 

Executive Services R5,009  R5,987  84% 5 R 1,002 

Total R31,286  R46,623  67% 58   
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Personnel cost by salary band 
 

Level 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

% of 
personnel exp. 

to total 
personnel cost  

No. of 
employees 

Average 
personnel 
cost per 

employee 
(R’000) 

Top Management R2,725  9% 2 R1,363  

Senior Management R3,632  12% 4 R908  

Professional qualified/Managers R11,972  38% 15 R798  

Skilled/Officers R11,764  38% 31 R379  

Semi-skilled/ Clerks R668  2% 2 R334  

Unskilled/General  R525  2% 4 R131  

Total R31,286  100% 58   

 
Performance Rewards 
 

Programme 

Performance 
rewards Personnel 

Expenditure 
(R’000) 

% of 
performance 

rewards  to total 
personnel cost 

(R’000) 

Top Management                       -                           -                              -    

Senior Management                       -                           -                              -    

Professional qualified                       -                           -                              -    

Skilled                       -                           -                              -    

Semi-skilled                       -                           -                              -    

Unskilled                       -                           -                              -    

Total                       -                           -                              -    
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Training Costs 
 

Programme 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure Training exp. as 

a % of Personnel  
cost  

No. of 
employees 

Average training 
cost per employee 

(R’000) (R’000) 

Collective Bargaining R11,434   0.0% 21 R0 

Dispute Resolution R3,609   0.0% 7 R0 

Corporate Services R4,668   0.0% 8 R0 

Office of the CFO R6,566   0.0% 17 R0 

Executive Services R5,009 R25 0.1% 5 R5 

Total R31,286  R25  0.1% 58   

 
Employment levels per programme 
 

Programme 

2020/2021 
Approved 

Posts 

2020/2021 2020/2021 

% of 
vacancies 

No. of 
Employees Vacancies 

Executive Office 6 5 1 17% 

Collective Bargaining 21 21 0 0% 

Corporate Services 8 8 0 0% 

Office of the CFO 17 17 0 0% 

Dispute Management Services 8 7 1 13% 

TOTAL 60 58 2 3% 
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Employment and vacancies per level 
 

Programme 

2020/2021 
Approved 

Posts 

2020/2021 2020/2021 

% of 
vacancies 

No. of 
Employees Vacancies 

Top Management 2 2 0 0% 

Senior Management 4 4 0 0% 

Professional qualified 17 15 2 12% 

Skilled  31 31 0 0% 

Semi-skilled 2 2 0 0% 

Unskilled 4 4 0 0% 

TOTAL 60 58 2 3% 

 
Employment Changes 

 
Salary Band Employment 

at beginning 
of period 

Appointments  Terminations  Transfers Employment at 
end of the period 

Top Management 2 0 0 0 2 

Senior Management 4 0 0 0 4 

Professional qualified 15 0 0 0 15 

Skilled  31 0 0 0 31 

Semi-skilled 2 0 0 0 2 

Unskilled 4 0 0 0 4 

Total 58 0 0 0 58 
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Reasons for staff leaving 
 

Reason 
Number 

% of total no. 
of staff leaving 

Death 0 0% 

Resignation 0 0% 

Dismissal 0 0% 

Retirement 0 0% 

Ill health 0 0% 

Expiry of contract 0 0% 

Other (Termination by mutual 
agreement) 0 

0% 

Total 0 0% 

 
Labour Relations Issues 
 

Nature of disciplinary Action Number  

Verbal Warning 0 

Written Warning 9 

Final Written warning 1 

Demotion 0 

Disciplinary 0 

Dismissal 0 

Grievances 0 

Other (Termination by mutual 
agreement) 0 

Total 10 
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Equity targets 
 

Levels                   

MALE                 
  AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN   WHITE 

  Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Target Current Target 

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 9 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 

Skilled  13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Semi-skilled 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 29 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 

 
Levels                   

FEMALE                 

  AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN   WHITE 

  Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Target Current Target 

Top Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 4 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 

Skilled  13 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 21 0 3 0 1 0 0 2 0 
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Levels Disabled Staff 

  Male  Female 

  Current  Target Current  Target 

Top Management 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0 

Skilled  0 0 1 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 1 0 0 0 

TOTAL 1 0 1 0 
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PROGRAMME 4 FINANCE AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of supply chain management services is to ensure that contracts for goods and services, are done in accordance with 
a system which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective as per section 217 of RSA Constitution.  
 
Sub-programmes:  

 Finance and Administration 

 Demand management  

 Database (suppliers) management  

 Contract management  

 Procurements and acquisitions 

 Assets management  
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To ensure sound financial management and reporting discipline in terms of section 53 of the LRA 

 To provide procurement and provisioning functions in the ELRC into and integrated SCM function 

 To provide sound asset management which includes safeguarding and maintenance of the ELRC assets 

 Take effective and appropriate steps to prevent unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
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Finance  
 
Finance        

Performance  
Indicator  

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter  

Actual Achievement 3rd   
Quarter  

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual  

Achievement for 3rd   
Quarter  

Comment on deviations  Status  

Achieve unqualified 

audit opinion from 

external audit at year 

end 

Achieve 

unqualified audit 

opinion from 

external audit at 

year end 

Produce 1 accurate 
and timeous 
quarterly financial 
statements within 
the month after the 
end of the reporting 
quarter 

Achieved  

 

Accurate 
and timeous 
quarterly financial 
statements were produced 
within the month after the 
end of the reporting 
quarter 

 

None    

  Produce 2 accurate 
monthly financial 
statements within 
the month after the 
end of the reporting 
month 

Achieved  

 

One month’s accurate financial 

statement was produced within 

a month after the end of the 

reporting month 

 

None    

An approved accurate 

and comprehensive 

MTEF Budget 

FY2021/22 and Mid-

Year review of the 

budget FY2020/21 

An approved 

accurate and 

comprehensive 

MTEF Budget 

FY2021/22 and 

Mid-Year review 

of the budget 

FY2020/21 

Approved FY2020/21 
Mid-Year budget  
 

Achieved 

 

FY2020/21 - Mid-Year budget 

was approved on 4th November 

2020 

None    

  Produce accurate 
quarterly budget 
variance within the 
month after the end 
of the reporting 
quarter 

Achieved  
 
Accurate 
quarterly budget 
variance was produced within 
the month after the end 
of the reporting quarter 

None  
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Finance        

Performance  
Indicator  

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter  

Actual Achievement 3rd   
Quarter  

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual  

Achievement for 3rd   
Quarter  

Comment on deviations  Status  

  Produce 2 accurate 
monthly budget 
variance reports 
within the month 
after the end of the 
reporting month 

Achieved  

 

One (1) month’s accurate 

budget variance report was 

produced within a month after 

the end of the reporting month  

None  

 

 

 

 

 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year  

 
The unit prepared financial statements for the months of October and November 2020, in compliance with the APP targets and also distributed 
the monthly budget variance reports (October and November). The financial statements and the budget reports were reviewed and comments 
were taken into consideration for preparation of the quarterly financial report.  
 
FY2020/21 Mid-year budget was prepared and presented to the Executive Committee on 4th November 2020 and approval was granted.  

 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  

 
Not applicable. 
 
Changes to planned targets  
  
No changes were made to planned targets.   
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Supply Chain Management Services 
 
Key performance indicators planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Supply Chain Management Services  

Performance  
Indicator  

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter  

Actual Achievement 3rd    
Quarter  

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual  

Achievement for 3rd     
Quarter  

Comment on deviations  Status  

Complete and accurate 

Fixed Assets register 

(FAR) at the end of the 

year 

Maintain a 
complete and 
accurate Fixed 
Assets Register 
(FAR) as at year 
end for inclusion 
in the Annual 
Financial 
Statements 

Update the Fixed 
Assets Register and 
Produce a complete 
FAR for the quarter 
for inclusion in the 
Financial 
Statements  

 

 Not Achieved 

 

0% 

 

The FAR has been updated 

with additions and disposals. 

The updates still to be 

reviewed and signed off. 

 
 

Maintain an updated 
valid office Inventory 
List 

Not Achieved 10% Provincial Inventory List 

(KZN) is still being reconciled 

with the FAR to resolve 

discrepancies. 

 
 

Produce a Report for 

Irregular, Unauthorised, 

Fruitless and Wasteful 

expenditure for the 

quarter 

Monitoring and 
reporting on 
Irregular, 
Unauthorised, 
Fruitless and 
Wasteful 
Expenditure to 
management 
and Finance 
department for 
disclosure 
purposes in the 
financial 
statements 
 

Produce a report for 
Irregular, 
Unauthorised, Fruitless 
and Wasteful 
expenditure for the 
quarter 

Achieved 

 

A report for Irregular, 

Unauthorised, Fruitless and 

Wasteful expenditure for the 

quarter was produced 

None   
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Supply Chain Management Services  

Performance  
Indicator  

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter  

Actual Achievement 3rd    
Quarter  

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual  

Achievement for 3rd     
Quarter  

Comment on deviations  Status  

Monitoring of the contract 

management system to 

ensure compliance to 

procurement policy 

Monitoring of the 
contract 
management 
system to 
ensure 
compliance with 
SCM policy and 
procedures. 

Produce report on 
contract monitoring 
activities year to date. 

Achieved   

 

Report on Contract monitoring 
activities was produced year to 
date 

None   
 

Procurement in line with 
the Organisational 
Procurement Plan for 
2020/21 

Execution of the 
departmental 
procurement in 
line with the 
approved 
Procurement 
Plan for 2020/21 

Produce Quarterly 
Report on the 
approved Procurement 
Plan for 2020/21 

Achieved 
 
Quarterly report was produced 
on the approved 
Procurement Plan for 
2020/21 

None    
 

 
Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year  

 
The monthly reports on commitments are compiled and circulated to management for monitoring. 
 
Fixed Assets Management 
 
The Fixed Asset Register is reviewed monthly for any changes in the Council’s assets. The monthly reconciliation is signed by both the SCM 
Manager and Finance Manager and is approved on a quarterly basis by the CFO. Any changes or movement of assets ias noted, corrected and 
the inventory list is updated accordingly. There were two major moves this quarter of the SCM Office and that of ICT to the revamped side at the 
tenant area. The list has been updated with new office numbers.    
 
Additions for the quarter: There was one addition in the FAR that is procurement of a Laptop for a party member. There were also minor 
renovations that were completed during the quarter enhancing the value of the building. 
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Monitoring of Irregular, Unauthorised, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure 
 
Irregular, Unauthorised, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure report is compiled and being monitored. No Irregular, Unauthorised Expenditure 
cases were reported during the quarter under review. However, there were two cases of fruitless and wasteful expenditure reported and is being 
investigated. There are two long outstanding cases that are pursued with the relevant external stakeholders. 
 
Acquisition Management  

 

1. Procurement Plan – Tenders 

a. For 2020/21 FY there is only one tender listed for the Financial Year. 

(i) The appointment of the Travel Management Service Provider – The tender has been removed from the procurement 

plan as the current contract will be extended. 

2. Procurement Plan – above R50 000 but below R500 000 

a. The Procurement Plan was revised in line with the Budget review. 

b. There were six items listed for the quarter and three were procured within the quarter as planned. There was one cancellation as 

quotations received were above the budgeted amount. One relating to installation of air conditioning has been deferred indefinitely, 

while assessing the impact of the current solution and of opening windows. The Exchange server upgrade will be moved to the 

fourth quarter, as indicated by the end user. 

 

Contract Management 

 

Contracts are closely monitored, and end users are notified of their contracts expiring within six months.  

 

There are nine contracts that will be expiring within six months and the end users have been engaged. Three are in the process of being renewed 

and they relate to office space rental for KZN, North West and Eastern Cape. For all three Chambers, the process of renewal has been initiated. 

Approval has been granted to extend the Travel Management services due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

There were two new contracts that were entered into during the quarter for Fire Alarm and Suppression Maintenance and KZN printer. 
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  
 

The process to migrate the FAR to Evolution system has been completed and monitored before the procurement of scanners can be finalised.  

 
Changes to planned targets  

  
No changes were made to planned targets. 
 
Linking performance to budget 

 
Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Finance and 
Supply Chain 
Management 
Services 

R’000 R’000 R’000 

Supply Chain 
Management 

813 1,105 292 

Finance 
Administration  

2,211 2,374 163 

Total 3,024 3,479 455 

 
 
 
 
 



 

115 
 

PROGRAMME 5 EXECUTIVE SERVICES 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Executive services is to ensure the Council meets its strategic vision which rests on the pillars of its mandate to maintain labour 
peace in public education and extends to the attainment of quality education in public schools, through stakeholder collaboration and support of 
initiatives to restore the image of the teaching profession. 
 
Sub-programmes:  

 Strategic and corporate governance  

 Internal audit and compliance  

 Risk management  
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To add value through assessing the tone and risk management culture of the organisation, as well as evaluating and reporting on the 
effectiveness and efficiency of the implementation of management policies. 

 To instil fiscal discipline, sound corporate governance and compliance with regulatory framework. 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Executive Services 

Internal Audit       

Programme Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 3rd Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Approved FY2021/22 Internal 
Audit Coverage Plan 

Internal Audit Three-Year 
Rolling Strategic and Annual 
Audit Plan developed and 
approved by the Audit and 
Risk Committee by the 31 
March  

n/a n/a 
 

n/a  *This is an 
annual target that 
only relates to 
the fourth quarter 
of the 2020/21 
financial year. 
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Executive Services 

Internal Audit       

Programme Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 3rd Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Quarterly audit monitoring 
reports submitted to 
management and Audit and Risk 
Committee 

Execution of 100% quarterly 
audits engagements and issue 
audit reports 

Execution of 100% of the 
first quarterly planned audits 
and ad-hoc engagements 
and issue audit reports 

Achieved 
 
Three (3) planned 
assurance audit 
engagements were finalised 
and reports were issued 
 
Two (2) follow-up planned 
audit engagements were 
finalised and reports were 
issued 
 
Three (3) mandatory 
quarterly reports were 
issued 
 
Ad hoc engagements were 
done, and reports issued 
 

None    

Audit reports to be tabled at 
the quarterly Audit and Risk 
Committee meeting 

Achieved 
 
All 3rd quarter audit reports 
were shared with the Audit 
and Risk Committee 
members and tabled at the 
quarterly  Audit and Risk 
Committee meeting 
 

None   

Provide objective assurance on 
the adequacy and effectiveness 
of risk management processes 

Annual Risk Assessment 
Report developed by the 31 
March, submitted to the Audit 
and Risk Committee for 
approval 

n/a n/a 
 
 
 
 

n/a  *This is an 
annual target that 
only relates to 
the fourth quarter 
of the 2020/21 
financial year. 
 

Annual Risk Monitoring Report 
submitted to Management and 
Audit and Risk Committee 

Quarterly Risk Register 
monitoring report submitted 
to the Audit and Risk 

Achieved 
 
Quarterly Risk Report was 
issued and tabled at the 

None   
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Executive Services 

Internal Audit       

Programme Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 3rd Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
3rd Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 3rd Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Committee at the quarterly 
meeting 
 

quarterly  Audit and Risk 
Committee meeting 
 

 
 

Overview of performance for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
The Internal Audit Function undertook and issued reports for the following engagements in line with the 2020/21 Approved Audit Plan: 
 
Assurance Services: Audits Projects 

 Contract Management  

 Procurement Management 

 Asset Management 
 
Follow-Up Reviews 

 External Audit Management report 

 Prior Internal Audit reports 
 

Quarterly Mandatory Reviews 

 Quarterly Performance Information Report 

 Compliance Checklist. 

 Risk Monitoring Report 
 
Ad-Hoc 

 Quality checking of the Open Purchase Orders Report 

 Review of Risk Management Policy and Standard Operating Procedure 

 Review of Performance Information Management System Policy and Standard Operating Procedure 

 Risk Management Refresher Training 

 Quality review of monthly payroll 
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets. 
 
Linking performance to budget 

 
Oct - Dec 2020 

Programme 
Name 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Executive 
Services 

R’000 R’000 R’000 

Financial 
Management 
and 
Compliance 
Services 

1,537 2,433 896 

Total 1,537 2,433 896 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

119 
 

Robot Indicator Status for performance tables: 
 

Status Colour 

Not Achieved  

50% or more of target achieved, supported by 
evidence 

 

Target fully achieved  

Default status of an indicator (White)  
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PROGRAMME 6  FINANCIAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
REPORT OF THE CFO 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 

 
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
Non - Current Assets 
 
There were asset additions of R723 630, these additions are made to make changes to the national office to ensure compliance with COVID-19 
requirements as well as the upgrade made to the Council’s website.  
 
The total carrying amount of non-current assets as at the end of the reporting period is R27.4-million, compared to the R29.8-million carrying 
amount at the end of the third quarter of 2019. An amount of R2.6-million (2019: R2.3-million) has been expensed as depreciation and amortisation 
in both comparable periods.      
 
Current Assets 
 
Trade and other receivables increased by R10 520 from R600 364 (2019), the increase is mainly due to additional deposit made for lease 
contracts renewed.   
 
Total cash and cash equivalents reported as at the end of the quarter is R186-million compared to R167-million of the comparable period. This 
movement indicates an increase of R19-million, mainly due to retention of cash in the bank as fewer core business activities took place during 
the period under review due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Liabilities   
 
Trade and other payables decreased by R257 313 from R3.3-million (2019) mainly due to clearing of accruals. The ELRC commits to paying 
service providers within 30 days or less of receipt of valid invoices. The trade and other payables amount represent only accounts for liabilities 
known as at the time of closing the books at the end of the quarter.  
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Provisions are reported at R653 754 compared to R1.3-million (2019). The reported balance indicates a decrease due to payment made to 
SADTU.  
 
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
Income  
 
Income from levies is reported at R56million, this reported amount indicates an increase of R221 426 when compared with the amount of R55.8-
million reported in the comparable period. Other income received has decreased by R4.1-million to R4.7-million, compared to R8.8-million 
reported in the third quarter of the prior year. This decrease is mainly attributable to lower interest rate resulting in low interest earned on the 
funds invested.  
 
Expenditure 
 
Total expenditure is reported at R47-million compared to R57-million in the third quarter of 2019. The decrease of R10-million is mainly due to 
the decrease in activities and spending because of COVID-19. The money has been spent in line with the approved Council’s Annual Performance 
Plan.   
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The total surplus for the nine months ended 31 December 2020 is R14.1-million compared to R7.7-million in the prior year.  
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6.1: FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

THE EDUCATION LABOUR RELATIONS COUNCIL 
(Established in terms of the Labour Relations Act, 1995 [Act No: 66 of 1995]) 
HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

 
Total Income  
 
The actual income collected during the period under review amounted to R20.5-million (2019: R21.7-million), which is 3% less than the projected 
income of R21.2-million. Other income collection is lower than projected by 46%. This decrease is mainly attributable to the ower interest rate 
earned on the funds invested with the Reserve Bank. 
 
Total Expenditure 
 
The third quarter had fewer operating business days, due to the academic calendar breaks, written examinations, and numerous public holidays. 
Therefore, the core business operations usually indicates a decline in activities and so do the financial figures that funds these activities.    
 

1. Dispute Management Services 
 
DMS approved budget for the third quarter, is R4.9-million and the actual utilisation is R3.4-million. There is an under expenditure of R1.5-
million (31%), compared to R3.8-million spent in the prior year. The under expenditure is mainly due to the following reasons: 
 

1.1. Fewer cases are scheduled, heard, and invoiced for in the third quarter, therefore the spending on core operations 
(expenditure) is affected.  A total saving of R418 688 can be seen on core expenses (Arbitration, Condonation, Quality control 
on awards and Conciliation).   

1.2. Of the R300 000 budget for legal fees, only R134 688 was spent resulting in a saving of R165 312. 
1.3. There is also a saving of R320 670 on the employee cost budget due to the vacancy of the Manager DMS.   
1.4. No training was conducted during the period under review, resulting in a saving of R565 407 on the budget line item.  

 
The programme spending is in line with the programme’s targets. The unit has achieved 67% of its performance targets. 
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2. Collective Bargaining Services 
 
2.1. Collective Bargaining Services: National 

 
Overall actual spending is reported at R3.8-million (68%) of the allocated budget of R5.7-million, compared to prior year reported 
spending of R6.8-million. There is an under expenditure of R1.8-million against the allocated budget for the period under review.  
 
The under expenditure is mainly attributable to the travel restriction implemented by government due to the COVID–19 pandemic and 
reasons indicated above. 

 
The programme spending is mainly on administrative expenses which are is in line with the planned programme’s targets. The unit has 
achieved 100% of its performance targets.   

 
 

2.2. Collective Bargaining Services: Provincial Chambers 
 
Overall actual spending is reported at R697 736 (64%) against the budget of R1-million, while the spending for prior year was reported at 
R1.1-million.  
 
The variance of 53% is mainly because most of the provincial bargaining and consultation meetings (including strategic planning) planned 
for period were held virtually due to the COVID–19 restrictions placed on the organisation’s operations and also because of the slow-
down in activities during the quarter.   

 
The provincial spending on administrative expenses is in line with the planned targets per province. The provincial chambers have 
achieved 95% of their performance targets.   

 
3. Administration Support Services 

 
Executive Services 
 
Overall actual spending is reported at R1.5-million, this is 63% below the allocated budget of R2.4-million, while the spending for the prior 
year was reported at R1.7-million for the same period. There is an under expenditure of R896 068 to the allocated budget.  
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The overall under expenditure is mainly due to the following:  

 The underspending is on consulting and legal fees.   

 There is also a saving of R364 851 on the employee cost budget due to the vacancy of the Manager IA.   

The programme spending is on administrative expenses in support of the core programmes of the Council. This spending is in line with 
the unit’s planned targets for the quarter. The unit has achieved 100% of its performance targets.   
 
Corporate Services  
 
Actual spending is reported at R2.2-million (81%) of the allocated budget of R2.8-million, compared to prior year reported expense of 
R2.8-million. There is an under expenditure of 19% to the allocated budget.   

 
The overall under expenditure is mainly due to the following:  

 The budget for Media and Communication is underutilised, as no marketing and advertising activities took place during the quarter.  
 
The programme spending is line with the performance targets and is on administrative expenses in support of the core programmes of 
the Council. The unit’s overall achievement is recorded at 100% of its performance targets.   

 
Finance and Supply Chain Management Services  
 
Actual spending reported for the period is reported at R3-million against the allocated budget of R3.5-million, while the spending for the 
prior year was reported at R2.8-million.  
 

 There is a saving on the SCM administration budget on cleaning, consumables, electricity, and petrol. This is because of the 
restrictions placed on the activities of the organisation as staff members were mainly working remotely, due to COVID-19.  

 The budget for Finance administration has been underspent on consulting and bank charges due to expense being lower than 
projected.   

 
The programme spending is in support of the core programmes of the Council. The unit has achieved 80% of its performance targets.   
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4. Irregular, Unauthorised, Fruitless and Wasteful report 
 

No new cases of Irregular and Unauthorised expenditure were reported during the period under review. 
 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure balance of R6 868 has been carried over from the prior year. R3 889 was incurred during the quarter 
and R2 667 has been recovered. Therefore, the balance at the end of the period is R8 090 and will be recovered during the financial year. 

 
5. Procurement – Tenders 

 
No tenders were evaluated and awarded during the period under review.  

 
Conclusion 
 
Overall, the Council reports expenditure of R15.2-million (including CAPEX) against a budget of R21-million. This translates to 72% utilisation of 
the allocated budget for the period.  
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

Dec-20 Dec-19

Notes R R

Assets

Non-Current Assets 27,413,543 29,802,184

Property and equipment 2 25,352,425 26,565,570

Intangible assets 3 2,061,118 3,236,614

Current Assets 186,191,588 167,211,105

Trade and other receivables 4 610,884 600,364

Cash and cash equivalents 5 185,580,704 166,610,741

Total Assets 213,605,131 197,013,289

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Retained surplus 209,932,245 192,445,979

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 3,672,886 4,567,310

Trade and other payables 6 3,019,132 3,276,445

Provisions 7 653,754 1,290,865

Total Equity and Liabilities 213,605,131 197,013,289
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for period ended 31 December 2020

Dec-20 Dec-19

Notes R R

Revenue 8 56,043,398 55,821,972

Other Income 9 4,661,530 8,807,609

Operating Expenditure 17 (46,639,397)     (56,874,683)       

Operating Surplus for the period 14,065,531      7,754,898          

Description
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Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 December 2020

Retained surplus Total equity

R R

Balance at 01 January 2019 184,691,081 184,691,081

Total comprehensive surplus for the period 7,754,898            7,754,898           

Balance at 01 January 2020 192,445,979 192,445,979

Surplus for the remainder of 2019/20 3,420,735 3,420,735

Total comprehensive surplus for the period 14,065,531          14,065,531         

Balance at 31 December 2020 209,932,245 209,932,244

Description
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Statement of Cash Flows as at 31 December 2020

Dec-20 Dec-19

Notes R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 12 15,558,476 8,223,906         

Net cash from operating activities 15,558,476 8,223,906         

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment 2 (678,380)          (353,722)          

Disposal of property and equipment 9 -                   31,970              

Purchase of intangible assets 3 (45,250)            (3,523,072)       

Net cash from investing activities (723,630)          (3,844,824)       

Increase in cash and cash equivalents for 

the period 14,834,847      4,379,082         

Cash at the beginning of the financial year 170,745,857 162,231,659

5 185,580,704 166,610,741Total cash and cash equivalents at the end 

of the period
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Accounting Policies for the period ended 31 December 2020 

1. Presentation of financial statements 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for SME’s) 
and the Labour Relations Act, 66 of 1995 as amended. The financial statements have 
been prepared on the historical cost basis and incorporate the principal accounting 
policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands. 
 
These accounting policies have been amended to be compliant with the reporting  
framework of IFRS for SME’s. 
 
1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
Useful lives of property and equipment 
 
The Council reviews the estimated useful lives of property and equipment when 
changing circumstances indicate that they may have changed since the most recent 
reporting date. 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are inherently based on assumptions and estimates using the best 
information available. Additional disclosure of these estimates is included in note 
7 - Provisions. 
 
1.2 Land 
 
Land is not depreciated, and it is stated at cost.  
 
1.3 Property and equipment 
 
Property and equipment are tangible items that: 

 are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to 
others or for administrative purposes; and 

 are expected to be used during more than one period. 
 
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Cost includes all costs incurred to bring the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
 
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property and 
equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If 
a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property and 
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 
 
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to write down the cost over 
the useful life of the property and equipment, which is as follows:  
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Item Depreciation 

method 
Average useful life in 
years 

Buildings  Straight line 25 

Lifts Straight line 25 

Generators Straight line 25 

Furniture and fittings Straight line 10 

Motor vehicles Straight line 7 

Office equipment Straight line 8 to 10 

Computer equipment Straight line 3 

Leasehold improvements Straight line 5 

 

The depreciation method and useful life of each asset are reviewed at each reporting 
date if there are indicators present that there has been a significant change from the 
previous estimate.  

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the 
carrying amount and are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period. 

1.4 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.  

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, 
to their residual values as follows: 
 

Item Depreciation method Average useful life in 
years 

Systems (operational) software Straight line 3 

Application software Straight line 8 

The amortisation period and amortisation method for intangible assets are 
reassessed when there is an indication that there is a change from the previous 
estimate. 

1.5 Financial instruments 

Initial measurement 
 
Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including 
transaction costs except in the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities 
that are measured at fair value through profit or loss) unless the arrangement 
constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the 
present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a 
similar debt instrument. 
 
Financial instruments at amortised cost  
 
These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments 
which meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of the Standard, are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are 
classified as current assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted 
amount of the cash expected to be received or paid unless the arrangement effectively 
constitutes a financing transaction.  
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At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are 
reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If there 
is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the 
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount 
is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in surplus or deficit. 

1.6 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. All other leases are operating leases. 

Operating leases – lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term unless: 

 another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit 
from the leased asset, even if the payments are not on that basis, or 

 the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general 
inflation (based on published indices or statistics) to compensate for the 
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred. 

1.7 Impairment of assets 

The council assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that 
property and equipment or intangible assets may be impaired. 

If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group 
of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated 
recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated 
recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or 
deficit. 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or 
group of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, 
but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of 
impairment is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

1.8 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the 
service is rendered, such as leave pay, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as 
medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are 
not discounted. 

Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense 
as they fall due. 
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1.9 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when the Council has an obligation at the reporting date 
as a result of a past event; it is probable that the Council will be required to transfer 
economic benefits in settlement; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the amount expected to be required 
to settle the obligation using a rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.  

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.  

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events that are beyond the control of the entity. 

Alternatively, a contingent liability is a present obligation that arises from past events 
but is not recognised because: 

 It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or 

 The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes. The estimation of the 
amounts disclosed is based on the expected possible outflows of economic benefits 
should there be a present obligation.  
 
Contingent assets 

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that are not 
wholly within the control of the entity and give rise to the possibility of an inflow of 
economic benefits or service potential to the entity.  
 

Contingent assets are included in the disclosure notes. The estimation of the amounts 
disclosed is based on the expected possible inflows of economic benefits or service 
potential to the entity. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised as provisions as the 
recognition criteria for provisions is not met. 

1.10 Revenue 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the Council has transferred the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of goods to the buyer, or has rendered services under 
an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is 
probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
council. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable and discounts.  

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.  
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1.11  Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred. 
 

1.12 Presentation of Budget information 

The Council discloses a comparison of the budget and actual amount in the primary 
financial statements.  
 
1.13  Related Parties 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other 
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and 
operating decisions; or if the related party entity and another party are subject to 
common control.  

Related parties include individuals who have significant influence over the entity, such 
as members of the Executive Committee (EXCO), its committees and key 
management personnel.  

All transactions between the entity and related parties during the reporting period as 
well as comparative information are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial 
statements. 
 
1.14 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the Public Finance Management Act 
(PFMA) is expenditure other than recognised expenditure, incurred in contravention 
of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, 
including: 

 Public Finance Management Act; 1999 (Act No1 of 1999) or  

 The State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No.86 of 1968), or any 
regulations made in terms of this Act; and 

 Any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that 
provincial government 

Irregular expenditure is accounted for in terms of the Council’s Supply Chain 
Management Policy. 
 
1.15 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure  

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which is made in vain and 
would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. 

Where an investigation determines, a receivable will be recorded against an employee 
who has been found to have incurred the fruitless and wasteful expenditure. In 
instances where a receivable is not raised against an employee or the amount is 
irrecoverable, the General Secretary may write off the debt. Fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure identified is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for in terms of the Council’s Supply 
Chain Management Policy. 
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1.16 Unauthorised expenditure  

Unauthorised expenditure refers to overspending of the budget approved or 
expenditure not in accordance with the purpose, strategic objective and mandate of 
the Council. 

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised 
expenditure. 

Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for in terms of the Council’s Supply Chain 
Management Policy. 
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Notes to the Quarterly Financial Statements for the period ended 31 December 2020 

 
 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2 

Property and equipment Dec-20 Dec-19

Cost
Accumulated 

depreciation
Carrying Value Cost

Accumulated 

depreciation
Carrying Value

Land 1,000,000 -                       1,000,000 1,000,000 -                       1,000,000

Buildings 33,433,263 (11,816,648)         21,616,615 32,847,221 (10,494,300)         22,352,921

Generators 599,576 (129,420)              470,156 599,576 (105,388)              494,188

Lifts 702,669 (136,667)              566,002 702,669 (108,502)              594,167

Furniture and fittings 2,416,073 (1,916,402)           499,671 2,505,703 (1,905,392)           600,311

Motor vehicles 499,000 (403,690)              95,310 499,000 (339,401)              159,599

Office equipment 802,476 (449,196)              353,280 1,012,077 (613,059)              399,018

Computer equipment 4,133,989 (3,382,598)           751,391 4,120,056 (3,154,690)           965,366

43,587,046 (18,234,621)         25,352,425 43,286,302 (16,720,732)         26,565,570

Reconciliation of property and equipment 31 December 2020

Opening 

Balance as at 01 

Apr 2020

Additions Disposals Depreciation
Total as at 31 

Dec 2020

Land 1,000,000 -                     -          -                     1,000,000

Buildings 22,025,573 586,042             -          (995,000)            21,616,615

Generators 488,213 -                     -          (18,057)              470,156

Lifts 587,164 -                     -          (21,162)              566,002

Furniture and fittings 583,435 -                     -          (83,764)              499,671

Motor vehicles 143,614 -                     -          (48,304)              95,310

Office equipment 411,039 -                     -          (57,759)              353,280

Computer equipment 1,081,956 92,338               -          (422,903)            751,391

26,320,994 678,380 -          (1,646,949)         25,352,425
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Land  
Erf, Die Hoewes Extension 26 Township, Registration Division J.R. Province of Gauteng, in extent 3019 square meters. 

Changes in estimates  

The Council reassesses the useful lives and residual values of items of property and equipment at the end of each reporting period, in line with 
the accounting policy and section 17 Property, plant and equipment. These assessments are based on historic analysis, benchmarking, and the 
latest available and reliable information. 

Computer equipment, office equipment and furniture & fittings that had one year remaining useful life at the beginning of the financial year have 
been reassessed with an additional two years.  

 
At the end of March 2019, as a result of the assessment of the condition of the Council’s office equipment, the entity reassessed the useful lives 
of its office equipment at the maximum of ten years (previously eight years) from the date of acquisition. This has the effect of increasing the 
depreciation expense for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

Reconciliation of property and equipment 31 December 2019

Opening 

Balance as at 01 

Apr 2019

Additions Disposals Depreciation
Total as at 31 

Dec 2019

Land 1,000,000 -                     -             -                     1,000,000

Buildings 23,342,160 -                     -             (989,239)            22,352,921

Generator 512,245 -                     -             (18,057)              494,188

Lifts 615,329 -                     -             (21,162)              594,167

Furniture and fittings 653,814 36,495               -             (89,998)              600,311

Motor vehicles 207,903 -                     -             (48,304)              159,599

Office equipment 427,857 37,848               (1,785)        (64,902)              399,018

Computer equipment 1,125,407 279,379             (1,549)        (437,871)            965,366

27,884,715 353,722 (3,334)        (1,669,533)         26,565,570
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Note 3 

Intangible assets

Cost
Accumulated 

amortisation
Carrying Value Cost

Accumulated 

amortisation
Carrying Value

Software 5,326,238 (3,265,120)           2,061,118 5,207,587 (1,970,973)           3,236,614

Dec-20 Dec-19

Reconciliation of intangible assets 31 December 2020

Opening 

Balance as at 01 

Apr 2020

Additions Amortisation
Total as at 31 

Dec 2020

Software 3,000,167            45,250               (984,299)      2,061,118

Reconciliation of intangible assets 31 December 2019

Opening 

Balance as at 01 

Apr 2019

Additions Amortisation
Total as at 31 

Dec 2019

Software 317,185               3,523,072          (603,643)      3,236,614
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Note 4

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Trade receivables 77,519 6,880

Prepayments 127,864               103,322             

Receivable from employees 5,505 43,081

Deposits 268,025 169,566

Other receivables 9,268 5,969

Flight ticket refunds * 117,023 247,445

Flight tickets for re-use 5,680 24,101

610,884 600,364

Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are not pledged as security. The carrying amount of the receivables 

approximate their fair value.

* Flight tickets refunds are air travel tickets that have been cancelled due unavailability of 

travellers.

Note 5

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 19,650 26,514

Current account 17,520,827 25,077,289

Short term deposits* 168,040,227 141,506,938

185,580,704 166,610,741

No restrictions have been placed on the use of the cash and cash equivalents for the operations 

of the entity. The carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents

*Short term deposits are held with the South African Reserve Bank (Corporate of Public 

deposits) and bears interest at a rate more competitive than those offered by the big four banks. 

These are made available immediately on call or request. 

Note 6

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Trade payables 325,019 257,695

Accrued leave pay 1,488,813 1,358,721

Accrued expenses 1,205,300 1,660,029

3,019,132 3,276,445

The carrying amount of the payables approximate their fair value.

Trade and other payables
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Note 7

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Provision for 13th Cheque -                           -                         

Provision for SADTU 653,754               1,290,865          

653,754 1,290,865

Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions 31 December 2020

Opening 

Balance as at 01 

Apr 2020

Additions Utilised
Total as at 31 

Dec 2020

Provision for 13th Cheque 585,768 1,909,160 (2,494,928)   -                     

Provision for SADTU 653,754 -                     -               653,754

1,239,522 1,909,160 (2,494,928) 653,754

Reconciliation of provisions 31 December 2019

Opening 

Balance as at 01 

Apr 2019

Additions Utilised
Total as at 31 

Dec 2019

Provision for 13th Cheque 484,757 1,922,003          (2,406,760)   -                         

Provision for SADTU 1,290,865 -                     -               1,290,865

1,775,622 1,922,003 (2,406,760) 1,290,865           

Provisions for SADTU comprise of costs to be claimed for services rendered by Parties to Council but for which claims have not 

been received. A reliable estimate is made based on the number of meetings attended and provisions of the Collective 

Agreement. 



Third Quarter Financial Statements  
Education Labour Relations Council 

142 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Note 8

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Levies - FETC 2,070,588 2,095,632

Levies - DBE 53,972,810 53,726,340

56,043,398 55,821,972

All levies received bear no credit risk and are paid from salary deductions from educators and an 

equal contribution by employer.

Revenue

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Interest income 4,337,545 7,895,508

Rental income 228,942 211,983

Profit on disposal of assets                             - 28,636

Penalty income 25,489 235,203

Other income 69,554 436,279

4,661,530 8,807,609

Other income

Note 9

Note 10

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Basic earnings 24,421,982 22,670,644

13th Cheque 1,908,217 1,873,223

Medical Aid 746,600 725,333

Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF) 78,524 80,160

Skills Development Levy (SDL) 153,070 244,568

Leave pay accrual charge 231,701 349,695

Housing allowance 499,500 729,000

Post emploment benefits 3,246,386 3,216,858

Total cost 31,285,980 29,889,481

Defined contribution plan 

The entity is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.

Employee costs

The entity provides post employment benefits through a defined contribution plan to all its 

employees. The Provident Fund and Retirement Annuity Funds are governed by the Pension 

Funds Act, 1956 (Act no 24 of 1956). 

Total number of employees 2020: 58 (2019: 60)

Note 11

Taxation

The Council is exempt from the payment of income tax in terms of section 10(1) (CA) (I) of the 

Income tax Act, No. 58 of 1962.
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Note 12

Cash generated from operations Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Surplus / (Deficit) for the period 14,065,531          7,754,898          

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 2,631,248            2,273,176          

(Profit) Loss on disposal of assets -                       (28,636)              

Movement in provisions (585,768)              (480,648)            

Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables 367,267               132,750             

Trade and other payables (919,802)              (1,427,634)         

15,558,476          8,223,906          

Note 13

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Expenses 13,756 37,407

Consulting fees 69,361 90,965

Statutory audit fees 703,371 687,066

786,488 815,438

Auditor’s remuneration

Note 14

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Already contracted, but not provided 

for: 

Operating expenditure 3,825,824 4,801,337

This committed expenditure relates to operating expenses and will be financed by available 

retained surplus. Commitments disclosed takes into consideration clauses as per the 

contractual agreements. 

Commitments

Total minimum lease payments

Not later than one year                 907,166               941,779 

Later than one year and not later than five years 328,823 571,789

1,235,989 1,513,567

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the ELRC for rentals of premises in the 

nine provincial offices. The leases typically run for a period of three to five years, with an option to 

renew. Rental expenses are increased annually as per the escalation clauses of the lease 

agreements.
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Note 15       

Related parties       

Employer party Department of Basic Education  

Chairperson of Council Advocate Luvuyo Bono  

Members of key management Ms Nolusindiso Foca  

 Ms Unathi Ndobeni  

 Ms Octavia Makofane  

 Mr Matlose Moela  

 Mr Frederick Moloisi  

 Ms Nelisiwe Bongco  

Trade unions 
South African Democratic Teachers Union 
(SADTU) 

 Combined Trade Union – Autonomous Trade Union 
(CTU-ATU) 

 
Non-Executive members serve in the audit committee of the ELRC. The Audit 
Committee sits for four meetings annually and any other special meetings. 
   
 
Key Management Personnel   

 

Key management information   

Class   Description 
Number of 
members  

Executive members 
 

Accounting 
Authority 

11 

Non-executive members 
 

Accounting 
Authority 

3 

Executive management 
 

Accounting 
Officer 

1 

Senior management   Management  5 

 

 

Related party transactions 

Fees paid to related parties in respect of services rendered

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Advocate L. Bono* 24,000 182,849

  

*This relates to the fees paid for services rendered by the independent Chairperson as a training 

facilitator and as a panellist in matters of arbitration or dispute resolution. The Chairperson’s 

decisions in dispute resolution and arbitration matters do not affect the financial position of the 

Council.
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Non-Executive members serve in the audit committee of the ELRC. The Audit 
Committee sits for four meetings annually and any other special meetings. 

Executive emoluments (Chairperson's fees) 

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Advocate L. Bono 133,000 72,000

Members of the ELRC Executive committee did not receive emoluments during the financial 

year as per collective agreement. The Board fees to date amount to R 133 000 and were only 

paid to Advocate L. Bono.

 

Audit Committee fees 2020

Daily fee Expenses Total

Mr SA Ngobeni 51,804                             - 51,804

Ms T Sihlaba 26,190 1,296 27,486

Dr C Motau 15,714                             - 15,714

93,708 1,296 95,004

Audit Committee fees 2019

Daily fee Travel Total

Mr SA Ngobeni 30,219 907 31,126

Ms T Sihlaba 15,654 496 16,150

Mr C Motau 10,476                             - 10,476

56,349 1,403 57,753
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* Other allowances comprise travel, medical aid fringe benefit, per diem, SDL and UIF. 

 

 

Executive management emoluments

13th 

31-Dec-2020 cheque

Ms NO Foca 1,115,410 88,651 191,486 184,865 1,580,412

Ms U Ndobeni 789,120 63,633 68,723 250,955 1,172,430

1,904,529 152,284 260,209 435,820 2,752,842

Post 

employment 

benefit

Other 

allowances*
TotalBasic salary

Executive management emoluments

13th 

31-Dec-2019 cheque

Ms NO Foca 1,010,346 84,195 181,862 229,292 1,505,696

Ms U Ndobeni 646,082 53,840 58,147 202,878 960,947

1,656,428 138,036 240,009 432,170 2,466,643

Basic salary Total
Other 

allowances*

Post 

employment 

benefit
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* Other allowances comprise medical aid fringe benefit, cash allowance, SDL and UIF. 

 

 

 

 

 

Senior management emoluments

13th 

31-Dec-2020 cheque

Ms LO Makofane 636,667 51,291 110,789 107,453 906,199

Ms NA Bongco 628,484 50,557 54,601 199,866 933,507

Mr FS Moloisi 709,598 57,317 123,805 41,915 932,636

Mr MP Moela 642,957 51,798 111,883 108,500 915,137

2,617,706 210,962 401,078 457,734 3,687,479

Total
Other 

allowances*

Post 

employment 

benefit

Basic salary

Senior management emoluments

13th 

31-Dec-2019 cheque

Ms LO Makofane 584,559 48,713 105,221 93,234 831,727

Ms NA Bongco 576,188 48,016 69,066 181,672 874,943

Mr FS Moloisi 653,239 54,437 117,583 30,331 855,590

Mr MP Moela 640,933 53,411 115,368 30,235 839,947

2,454,919 204,577 407,238 335,473 3,402,207

Post 

employment 

benefit

Basic salary Total
Other 

allowances*
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The fruitless and wasteful expenditure mainly relates to expenses incurred for late 
cancellation of food catering for provincial chamber meeting. The Council implement 
improved controls and where fruitless expenditure is incurred; such is recovered from the 
relevant officials.   

 

 
 

 

 

Note 16

Dec-20 Dec-19

R R

Opening balance as at 01 April                     6,868 -                     

Add: Expenditure incurred during the 

period
3,889 38,573

Less: Recovered during the period (2,667)                  (3,466)                

Less: Written Off during the period -                       (16,244)              

Closing balance as at 31 December 8,090 18,862

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
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Note 17

Dec-20 Dec-19

Operating expenses R R

Accommodation expenses -                       68,733

Administration and management fees 548,544 291,196

Advertising and Recruitment 589,313
Arbitration 2,885,476 5,843,996

Assets below R5000 4,499 9,851

Auditors fees 786,488               815,438             

Bank charges 36,126 54,193

Chairperson's fees 133,000 72,000

Cleaning and sanitation 52,563 88,548

Computer expenses 227,354 259,931

Conciliation 367,390 1,005,029

Condonation 44,375 80,500

Consulting and professional fees 88,958 417,917

Consumables 34,357 66,474

Cost of quality control  47,500 119,385

Delivery expenses 9,248 9,380

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 

loss
2,631,248 2,273,176

Dispute Prevention Support - FTSS -                       3,063,053          

Donations 1,500,000            -                     

Employee related costs 31,285,980 29,889,481

Employee wellness, health and safety

expenses
113,382 119,057

Facilitation and dispute prevention -                       215,389

Governance and provincial chambers 210,623 1,858,448

Implementation of Acts and Agreements 13,000 10,676

Insurance 380,536 291,815

Lease rentals on operating lease 1,241,213 1,026,161

Legal Expenses 488,012 466,761

Motor vehicle expenses 25,416 25,046

Municipal expenses 915,207 816,812

Printing and stationery 351,620 768,967

Refreshments 1,853 57,164

Repairs and maintenance 438,286 349,898

Research and Development -                       2,527,508

Security 808,001 753,694

Storage and removal 2,013                   -                     

Subscriptions and license fees 590,270 647,043

Telecommunication costs and postal fees 331,905 323,124

Training 43,800 625,513

Travelling costs 1,154 974,013

46,639,397 56,874,684
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Dec-20

Actual Budget Variance Variance % Actual Budget Variance Variance % Actual 2020/21 Actual 2019/20 Variance Variance %

INCOME 60,704,928 63,698,127 2,993,199 5% 20,501,764 21,232,709 730,945 3% 20,501,764 21,654,481 1,152,717

Revenue 56,043,398 55,553,003 490,395 1% 19,040,605 18,517,668 522,937 3% 19,040,605 18,710,499 330,106 2%

Other Income 4,661,530 8,145,124 (3,483,593) -43% 1,461,159 2,715,041 (1,253,882) -46% 1,461,159 2,943,982 (1,482,823) -50%

OPERATING EXPENSES 44,008,148           62,880,150          18,872,001           30% 14,755,110 20,378,014 5,622,904 28% 14,755,110 18,936,630 4,182,520 22%

DISPUTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 7,264,252             14,807,408          7,543,156             51% 3,415,386 4,935,803 1,520,417 31% 3,415,386 3,778,303 363,917 10%

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING SERVICES 14,893,971           21,835,781          6,941,810             32% 4,547,613 6,778,596 2,230,982 33% 4,547,613 7,856,054 3,308,441 42%

CBS (NATIONAL) 13,018,650           18,305,575          5,286,925             29% 3,836,005 5,601,858 1,765,853 32% 3,836,005 6,704,198 2,868,193 43%

Governance And Support Services 93,708                  273,660               179,952                66% 13,872 91,220 77,348 85% 13,872 50,017 36,145 72%

Chamber Expenses 1,781,612             3,256,545            1,474,933             45% 697,736 1,085,517 387,781 36% 697,736 1,101,839 404,103 37%

Gauteng 218,595                423,652               205,057                48% 105,137               141,217               36,080                 26% 105,137                172,406                67,268                 39%

Free State 247,947                412,717               164,770                40% 98,988                 137,572               38,585                 28% 98,988                  118,868                19,880                 17%

Eastern Cape 256,391                371,087               114,696                31% 88,844                 123,696               34,851                 28% 88,844                  145,695                56,851                 39%

Western Cape 177,253                246,780               69,527                  28% 61,141                 82,260                 21,119                 26% 61,141                  77,975                  16,834                 22%

Limpopo 222,408                397,197               174,788                44% 79,410                 132,399               52,989                 40% 79,410                  134,478                55,067                 41%

Mpumalanga 106,662                247,360               140,698                57% 39,280                 82,453                 43,174                 52% 39,280                  99,993                  60,714                 61%

Northern Cape 182,702                364,599               181,897                50% 63,511                 121,535               58,025                 48% 63,511                  146,359                82,849                 57%

North West Province 175,239                293,867               118,628                40% 93,241                 97,956                 4,715                  5% 93,241                  149,043                55,803                 37%

KwaZulu Natal 194,416                499,286               304,871                61% 68,184                 166,429               98,244                 59% 68,184                  57,021                  (11,163) -20%

CORPORATE SERVICES 6,897,551 8,500,373 1,602,822 19% 2,230,901 2,751,418 520,517 19% 2,230,901 2,796,922 566,021 20%

Media & Communications 122,281 730,598 608,316 83% 3,289 243,533 240,243 99% 3,289 582,100 578,811 99%

Information Communication Technology 1,575,240 1,909,510 334,270 18% 532,051 636,503 104,453 16% 532,051 380,286 (151,765) -40%

Human Resource 5,200,030 5,860,266 660,236 11% 1,695,562 1,871,383 175,821 9% 1,695,562 1,834,536 138,975 8%

FINANCE AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SERVICES 8,964,941 10,437,165 1,472,224 14% 3,024,134 3,479,055 454,921 13% 3,024,134 2,759,899 (264,235) -10%

Supply Chain Management 2,359,323 3,314,814 955,491 29% 813,003 1,104,938 291,935 26% 813,003 744,250 (68,753) -9%

Financial Accounting Services 6,605,618 7,122,351 516,733 7% 2,211,131 2,374,117 162,986 7% 2,211,131 2,015,649 (195,482) -10%

EXECUTIVE SERVICES 5,987,433 7,299,423 1,311,990 18% 1,537,075 2,433,143 896,068 37% 1,537,075 1,745,451 208,376 12%

CASH SURPLUS BEFORE CAPEX 16,696,780 817,977 5,746,654 854,695 5,746,654 2,717,851

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE (CAPEX) 723,630 1,732,743 1,009,114 58% 414,800 577,581 162,781 28% 414,800 74,584 (340,216)

CASH SURPLUS AFTER CAPEX 15,973,150 (914,766) 5,331,854 277,114 5,331,854 2,643,267

Year To Date - FY2020/21 Quarter 3 ComparisonQuarter 3 - FY2020/21
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